
 
 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
Please silence all electronic devices as a courtesy to those in attendance.  Thank you. 

 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
This time is reserved for members of the audience to address the City Council on items of interest that are not on the Agenda and are 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Council.  It is recommended that speakers limit their comments to 3 minutes each and it is 
requested that no comments be made during this period on items on the Agenda.  The Council is prohibited by law from taking any 
action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda.  Prior to addressing the Council, any handouts for Council will be provided 
to the City Clerk for distribution to the Council and appropriate staff. 
 

5:30 pm STUDY SESSION 
 
SS-1 South Fork Kings Groundwater Sustainable Act Update (Olson) 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

This item has been set aside for the City Council to meet in a closed session to discuss matters pursuant to Government Code Section 
54956.9(d)(4).  The Mayor will provide an oral report regarding the Closed Session at the beginning of the next regular City Council 
meeting. 

 
1. Conference with Real Property Negotiators 

Property:  245 E Street, APN 020-053-016, Approximately .45 Acres 
Agency Negotiator:  Nathan Olson, City Manager 
Negotiating Party:  Ann Keyes Trust 
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms 

2. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 
Government Code Section 54956.9 
Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Paragraph (2) or (3) of Subdivision (d) 
of Section 54956.9 
Two Cases 

3. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation 
Government code Section 54956.9(d)(1) 
City of Lemoore v. Holly Andrade Blair 
Case No. 19C-0043 
 

 
In the event that all the items on the closed session agenda have not been deliberated in the time provided, the City Council may 
continue the closed session at the end of the regularly scheduled Council Meeting. 

 
 
 
 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 
COUNCIL CHAMBER 

429 C STREET 
 March 19, 2019 

 

1



7:30 pm REGULAR SESSION 
 
a. CALL TO ORDER 
b. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
c. INVOCATION 
d. ROLL CALL 
e. AGENDA APPROVAL, ADDITIONS, AND/OR DELETIONS 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
This time is reserved for members of the audience to address the City Council on items of interest that are not on the Agenda and are 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Council.  It is recommended that speakers limit their comments to 3 minutes each and it is 
requested that no comments be made during this period on items on the Agenda.  The Council is prohibited by law from taking any 
action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda.  Prior to addressing the Council, any handouts for Council will be provided 
to the City Clerk for distribution to the Council and appropriate staff. 

 
CEREMONIAL / PRESENTATION – Section 1 

 
No Ceremonial / Presentations 
 

DEPARTMENT AND CITY MANAGER REPORTS – Section 2 
 
2-1 Department & City Manager Reports 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR – Section 3 
Items considered routine in nature are placed on the Consent Calendar.  They will all be considered and voted upon in one vote as 
one item unless a Council member or member of the public requests individual consideration. 
 
3-1 Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – March 5, 2019 
3-2 Approval – Letter of Support – Voter Protection Act (AB 17) 
3-3 Approval – Transportation Development Act Fund Claim for Fiscal Year 2019/20 – 

Resolution 2019-10 
3-4 Approval – Abatement of Public Nuisances and Setting a Public Hearing – Resolution 

2019-11 
3-5 Approval – Purchase of a new Hook Truck and Two Skids 
3-6 Approval – Approval of Job Descriptions and/or Salary Ranges for City Positions – 

Resolution 2019-12 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS – Section 4 
Report, discussion and/or other Council action will be taken. 

 
No Public Hearings 
 

NEW BUSINESS – Section 5 
Report, discussion and/or other Council action will be taken. 

 
5-1 Report and Recommendation – Award Contract for Construction Phase Management 

Services to Vanir Construction Management, INC for TTHM Compliance Order (Olson) 
 

CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS – Section 6 
 
6-1 City Council Reports / Requests 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

2



Upcoming Council Meetings 

• City Council Regular Meeting, Tuesday, April 2, 2019
• City Council Regular Meeting, Tuesday, April 16, 2019

Agendas for all City Council meetings are posted at least 72 hours prior to the meeting at the City Hall, 119 Fox St., Written 
communications from the public for the agenda must be received by the City Clerk’s Office no less than seven (7) days prior to 
the meeting date.  The City of Lemoore complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA of 1990).  The Council Chamber 
is accessible to the physically disabled. Should you need special assistance, please call (559) 924-6705, at least 4 business days 
prior to the meeting. 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 

I, Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk for the City of Lemoore, declare under penalty of perjury that I posted the 
above City Council Agenda for the meeting of March 19, 2019 at City Hall, 119 Fox Street, Lemoore, CA 
on March 13, 2019. 

//s// 
Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk 

3



“In God We Trust” 
 

                                                                            
 
 
        

     City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6700  Fax (559) 924-6708 

 
 

Staff Report 
 
    Item No: SS-1 

                  
To:  Lemoore City Council 
From: Nathan Olson, City Manager  
Date: February 11, 2019  Meeting Date:    March 19, 2019 
Subject: South Fork Kings Groundwater Sustainable Act Update 
 
Strategic Initiative:  

☐ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☐ Fiscally Sound Government ☐ Operational Excellence 

☐ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☒ Not Applicable  

 
Proposed Motion: 
Information Only. 
 
Subject/Discussion: 
The South Fork Kings Groundwater Sustainable Act (GSA) requested a study session so 
that they may provide council with an update. Amer, the technical consultant from 
Geosyntec, is scheduled to give a presentation on the progress of the GSA’s plan for 
managing groundwater in the service area.  
 
Financial Consideration(s): 
N/A 
 
Alternatives or Pros/Cons: 
N/A 
  
Commission/Board Recommendation: 
N/A 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
N/A 
 

4



“In God We Trust” 
 

 
Attachments:   Review: Date: 
☐ Resolution:   ☒ Asst. City Manager 02/12/19    
☐ Ordinance:   ☒ City Attorney 02/12/19 
☐ Map   ☒ City Clerk 02/13/19 
☐ Contract   ☒ City Manger 02/13/19 
☐ Other      

 List:  

5



1 
 

Item 3-1 
 

March 5, 2019 Minutes 
Study Session 

City Council Regular Meeting 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 
At 6:00 p.m., the meeting was called to order. 

 
ROLL CALL: Mayor: NEAL 
 Mayor Pro Tem: BILLINGSLEY 
 Council Members: BLAIR, BROWN, LYONS 
 
City Staff and contract employees present:  Assistant City Manager Speer; City Attorney Lerner; 
City Clerk Venegas. 

 
Council adjourned to Closed Session at 6:02 p.m. 

 
CLOSED SESSION 

 
1. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 

Government Code Section 54956.9 
Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Paragraph (2) or (3) of Subdivision (d) 
of Section 54956.9 
One Case 

2. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation 
Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) 
City of Lemoore v. Holly Andrade Blair 
Case No. 19C-0043 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
At 6:50 p.m., Council adjourned. 
 
 
 
 

March 5, 2019 Minutes 
Lemoore City Council 

Regular City Council Meeting 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 

At 7:30 p.m., the meeting was called to order. 
 
ROLL CALL: Mayor: NEAL 
 Mayor Pro Tem: BILLINGSLEY 
 Council Members: BLAIR, BROWN, LYONS 
  
City Staff and contract employees present: City Manager Olson; Assistant City Manager Speer; 
City Attorney Lerner; Public Works Director Rivera; Community Development Director Holwell; 
Police Chief Smith; Park and Recreation Director Glick; City Clerk Venegas; QK Engineer Joyner. 

6



2 
 

 
REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 

 
There was no report out. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Tom Reed read a prepared statement regarding the KCOE fiber optic agreement adopted at the 
last City Council meeting. 
 
Amy Ward, Lemoore Chamber CEO, attended the Surf Ranch’s job fair today that was opened 
up locally.  Commend them for what they are doing.  The Pizza Festival is coming up. 
 
Kristen Cursio read a prepared statement regarding the $25 late fee for water shut offs and 
suggested the city provide a grace period; addressed dog park grading and asked that it be 
reviewed so that water runs towards the drain and no longer stands and becomes stagnant, also 
suggested installing LED motion lights at the dog park; suggested the City structure a new social 
media policy for the use of the name “City of Lemoore” and “City Council” and add limits to what 
may be posted with the names. 
 

CEREMONIAL / PRESENTATION – Section 1 
 
There were no Ceremonial / Presentations. 
 

DEPARTMENT AND CITY MANAGER REPORTS – Section 2 
 
2-1 Department & City Manager Reports 
 
City Manager Olson stated Well 10 is still under rehab.  Multiple sections have been fixed but they 
are locating more.  This well typically comes back online the end of the month.  Attended a 
meeting last week at the Tribal Council with Amy Ward and it was a good meeting.  Closed on 
the 80+ acres last week and the property has officially been transferred to KKAL. 
 
City Manager Olson has been approached by business owners requesting the review of the 
current cannabis ordinance restrictions.  Consensus was received to review the cannabis 
ordinance. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR – Section 3 
 
3-1 Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – February 19, 2019 
 
Motion by Council Member Billingsley, seconded by Council Member Brown, to approve Consent 
Calendar as presented. 
 
Ayes: Billingsley, Brown, Lyons, Neal 
Noes: Blair 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS – Section 4 
 
There were no Public Hearings. 
 
 
 

7



3 
 

NEW BUSINESS – Section 5 
 
5-1  Information Only – QK Update on Progress of Storm Drain Master Plans 
 
Public Works Director Rivera introduced QK Engineer Rick Joyner and he provided an 
informational update on the progress of the Storm Drain Master Plans to include the following: 
 
 Master Plans – Sewer, Water and Storm Drain 

o QK commissioned May 2017 
o QK contracted with Carrollo Engineering to prepare Sewer and Water Master 

Plans 
o QK prepared Storm Drain Master Plan 

 Storm Drainage Hydrologic Criteria 
o Utilize Modified Rational Method 

 Pipelines and Drop Inlets 
 Drainage Basins 

o Retention 
o Detention 

 Regulations 
 Existing Storm Drainage System 
 Existing Storm Drainage Lift Stations 
 Existing Storm Drainage Basins 
 Disposal Areas 
 Existing Drainage Problem Areas 

o Cost for Existing Drainage Problem Areas 
 Downtown/High School Basin $1,770.636 
 Agricultural/Commercial Flooding $192,000 
 Hess Basin Drainage Facilities $1,765,500 
 Localized street ponding concerns $1,500,000 
 Total is $5,5228,136 

 Locations of Community Growth Facilities and Existing Facilities Modifications 
o Cost for Community Growth Facilities - $7,529,800 
o How do you pay for Community Growth Facilities 

 Current Storm Water Impact Fees  
• $730/single family residential unit = $4,103,330 

 Proposed Impact Fees 
• $1,400/single family residential unit = $7,870,800 

 
5-2 Report and Recommendation – Contract Award and Budget Amendment for 

Engineering Services Associated with City Improvements to approximately 83.4 acres 
located near the northeast corner of State Route (SR) 41 and Idaho Avenue (APN 024-
051-031) required by the Disposition and Development Agreement between the City and 
KKAL, LP 

 
Contract provided. 
Adjourned at 8:04 p.m. for a short break. 
Re-adjourned at 8:09 p.m. 
 
Motion by Council Member Billingsley, seconded by Council Member Brown, to approve the 
contract with A&M Consulting Engineers to provide engineering services for the coordination and 
creation of plans, specifications, and estimates (PS&E), approval of associated budget 
amendment, and authorization for the City Manager to execute required contract documentation. 
 

8



4 
 

Ayes: Billingsley, Brown, Lyons, Neal 
Noes: Blair 
 

CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS – Section 6 
 
6-1 City Council Reports / Requests 
 
Council Member Blair asked if allowed to discuss any mediation.  City Attorney Lerner said not 
allowed.  Pleased that Council reaching out to the Tribal Council.  Please send regards as not 
able to attend meetings. 
 
Council Member Brown attended the Chamber Mixer for Humana.  Attended KART meeting with 
no report out.  Attended KCAG meeting and looking for sponsors.  KCAG will have the shrubs 
timed back at the off ramps to 198.  Attended the SIGMA meeting and a study session item will 
be coming up.  The next SIGMA meeting is March 21, 2019 at 5:30pm in Council Chamber.  Thank 
staff as we are all working together to make things better.  Thank citizens for being in attendance. 
 
Council Member Lyons attended KCAO meeting.  Really neat group of people.  Thank department 
heads. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Billingsley thanked Amy Ward and City Manager Olson for reaching out to the 
Tribe.  Attended Mosquito Abatement meeting and they are building a new facility.  Attended the 
KCED meeting as well. 
 
City Manager Olson and Assistant City Manager Speer had the opportunity to sit in on the process 
to sell the city’s water bonds.  The water bonds were sold at a lower interest rate than anticipated. 
 
Mayor Neal stated Chapter 5 of the Municipal Code on the city website establishes a Tree 
Committee.  Community Development Director Holwell said she believes the Tree Committee is 
no longer in place.  City Manager Olson said staff would look into this item.  Mayor Neal also 
stated the Municipal Code also has Advertising Displays.  We need to beautify our city. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
At 8:26 p.m., Council adjourned.  
 
 
Approved the 19th day of March 2019. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
             
       Edward Neal, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk    

9



“In God We Trust” 
 

                                                                            
 
 
        

     City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6700  Fax (559) 924-6708 

 
 

Staff Report 
 

    Item No: 3-2 
                  
To:  Lemoore City Council 
From: Nathan Olson, City Manager   
Date: March 7, 2019   Meeting Date:   March 19, 2019 
Subject: Letter of Support – Voter Protection Act (AB 17) 
 
Strategic Initiative:  
☐ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☐ Fiscally Sound Government ☐ Operational Excellence 

☐ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☒ Not Applicable  

 
Proposed Motion:  
Approve the attached letter of support for Assembly Bill 17, also known as the Voter 
Protection Act. 
 
Subject/Discussion:  
Assembly member Rudy Salas is requesting the City of Lemoore’s support for 
Assembly Bill 17, the Voter Protection Act.  
 
 AB 17 will address voter suppression and protect ballot integrity by prohibiting an 
employer from requiring or requesting that an employee bring their vote by mail ballot to 
work or vote their vote by mail ballot at work. This bill shall apply to all public agencies 
and private industry, which will ensure that voters have a workplace free from voter 
intimidation and suppression.  
 
Violation of this prohibition is subject to a civil fine of up to $10,000 per election and may 
be brought by the Secretary of State or any public prosecutor with jurisdiction. 
 
Financial Consideration(s): 
None 
 
Alternatives or Pros/Cons: 

10



“In God We Trust” 
 

Council may choose to not approve the attached letter of support. 
 
Commission/Board Recommendation: 
Not Applicable 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
Staff recommends that Council approve the attached letter of support.   
 
 
 
Attachments:   Review: Date: 
☐ Resolution:   ☐ Asst. City Manager  
☐ Ordinance:    ☒ City Attorney 03/13/19 
☐ Map   ☒ City Clerk 03/13/19 
☐ Contract   ☒ City Manger 03/13/19 
☒ Other      

 List: Letter of Support 
 

 
 

11



“In God We Trust” 
 

 
 
                                                                             City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 W. Cinnamon Drive ● Lemoore, California 93245 ● (559) 924-6700 ● Fax (559) 924-6708 

Office of the City Manager 
 

March 19, 2019 

The Honorable Rudy Salas  
State Capitol, Room 4016 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
 
RE:  Support for AB 17 (Salas) – Voter Protection Act 

Dear Assembly Member Salas: 

The City of Lemoore is pleased to support AB 17 (Salas) which aims to ensure and protect the 
rights of voters in California by addressing election integrity in the workplace.  AB 17, also 
known as the Voter Protection Act, will safeguard ballot integrity and allow voters to have a 
workplace free from voter intimidation and suppression. By amending existing law to prohibit an 
employer from requiring or requesting that an employee bring their vote by mail ballot to work 
or vote their vote by mail ballot at work, AB 17 will protect employees from undue voting 
influence in the workplace.    

According to the California Elections Code, voters have the right to cast their ballot without 
intimidation or undue influence.  While AB 306 (2018) amended the Elections Code to expand 
vote by mail ballot protections, California has yet to address voter intimidation in the workplace.  
Employers who request or require that employees bring their ballots into work undermine 
election integrity by interfering with a voter’s right to a free and unconstrained vote.   

AB will protect a voter’s right to vote voluntarily for a candidate or issue of their choice.  This 
bill will increase voter protection by prohibiting employers from requesting or requiring 
employees to bring their vote by mail ballots into work and subjecting employers who violate 
this act with a civil fine of up to $10,000 per election.     

For all the foregoing reasons, the City of Lemoore strongly supports AB 17.  If you have any 
questions regarding this matter please do not hesitate to contact me.  

Sincerely, 

 
 
Eddie Neal, Mayor 
City of Lemoore 

12



“In God We Trust” 
 

                                                                            
 
 
        

     City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6700  Fax (559) 924-6708 

 
 

Staff Report 
 

    Item No: 3-3 
                  
To:  Lemoore City Council 
From: Frank Rivera, Public Works Director   
Date: March 5, 2019  Meeting Date:    March 19, 2019 
Subject: Transportation Development Act Fund Claim for Fiscal Year 2019/20 – 

Resolution 2019-10 
 
Strategic Initiative:  

☐ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☒ Fiscally Sound Government ☐ Operational Excellence 

☐ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☐ Not Applicable  

 
Proposed Motion: 
Approve the filing of a Notice of Exemption to certify that projects to be constructed with 
these funds are categorically exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA); adopt Resolution 2019-10 making a determination regarding public transit 
needs; and authorize the City Manager to submit the Transportation Development Act 
(TDA) Fund claim application, including any needed amendments after the Department 
of Finance population estimates are released on May 1. 
 
Subject/Discussion: 
The City has received the “Estimated Fiscal Year 2019-20” TDA Shares from Kings 
County Association of Governments (KCAG) regarding Fiscal Year 2019-20 Local 
Transportation Fund (LTF) Claims. The estimate of funds available for apportionment is 
provided by the Kings County Auditor and is apportioned based on population 
percentages of each jurisdiction, from the most current Department of Finance population 
estimate. 
 
Below is the estimated distribution of TDA funds for the apportionment allocated to the 
City of Lemoore for FY 2019-20: 
 
 

13



“In God We Trust” 
 

KCAG Transportation Planning Costs $14,767 
KCAPTA System Costs $298,178 
Local Streets and Roads – Claim Amt. $421,159 
City of Lemoore TDA Fund Total $734,104 

 
These figures will be adjusted around May 1 when the new state population estimates 
are released.  Resolution 2019-10 provides that the City Manager sign and submit this 
claim as well as any amended claims, as may be required. 
 
In regards to filing of an Exemption Notice, Title 14, Section 15301(c) Public Resources 
Code provides that rehabilitation and/or reconstruction of existing highways and streets 
within existing rights of ways are categorically exempt from EIR requirements. 
 
All agencies filing a claim for funds are required to hold a public hearing to determine if 
unmet transit needs exist within their jurisdiction. The Kings County Area Public Transit 
Agency (KCAPTA) scheduled public hearings for February 27 and March 27, 2019 on 
behalf of its member agencies. 
  
Financial Consideration(s): 
The funds of $421,159 will be deposited in our Local Transportation Fund (033) for use 
on street maintenance projects. 
 
Alternatives or Pros/Cons: 
None noted. 
 
Commission/Board Recommendation: 
Not applicable. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that City Council approve, by motion, the filing of a Notice of Exemption 
from CEQA and adopt resolution 2019-10 regarding public transit needs and authorize 
the City Manager to sign and submit claim for funds and any subsequent amended claims 
required. 
 
 
 
Attachments:   Review: Date: 
☒ Resolution: 2019-10  ☐ Asst. City Manager     
☐ Ordinance:   ☒ City Attorney 03/13/19 
☐ Map   ☒ City Clerk 03/13/19 
☐ Contract   ☒ City Manager 03/13/19 
☒ Other      

 List:  2019 Claim  
  2019 TDA Shares 
  Summary of Capital Improvements 
  Notice of Exemption 

14



ATTACHMENT "A"

15



16



RESOLUTION 2019-10 

1 
 

 
ATTACHMENT “B” 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-10 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
REGARDING PUBLIC TRANSIT NEEDS WITHIN THE CITY OF LEMOORE 

AND AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF A CLAIM FOR 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the Transportation Development Act provides for Local Transportation Funds 
(LTF) for meeting transportation needs that can be reasonably met; and 
 
 WHEREAS, once public transportation needs are met, the balance of the LTF may be claimed 
for local streets and roads; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Lemoore has participated with the Kings County Area Public Transit 
Agency (KCAPTA) to provide Public Transportation for the City of Lemoore; and 
 
 WHEREAS,  the Kings County Area Public Transit Agency Board, a joint powers authority, 
will conduct a Public Hearing on behalf of the City Council to determine if there are unmet 
transportation needs that are reasonable to meet; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the aforementioned service is currently meeting all transit needs that are 
reasonable to be met. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemoore 
does hereby find and determines based upon the testimony and evidence considered that there are no 
areas within its jurisdiction with unmet public transit needs which could be reasonably met by 
expansion of the existing transportation system or by the establishment of a new system. 
 
 BE IT FUTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemoore claims the 
unused balance of the Local Transportation Funds, not used for public transportation and 
transportation planning, for maintenance of local streets and roads and finds that maintenance of 
streets and roads is categorically exempt from environmental review. 
 

BE IT FUTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is hereby authorized to sign and submit 
the claim for Transportation Development Act Funds and any subsequent amended claims required. 

 
/ 
 
/ 

 
 
 

17



RESOLUTION 2019-10 

2 
 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lemoore at a Regular Meeting 

held on 19th day of March 2019 by the following vote: 
 
 AYES:   

 NOES:   

 ABSENT:  

 ABSTAIN:  

 
                    
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
_________________________   _________________________ 
Mary J. Venegas     Edward Neal 
City Clerk      Mayor 
 
 
 

18



ATTACHMENT “C” 

 

 

19



ATTACHMENT “D” 
 

Notice of Exemption 
 
 

To: Kings County Clerk/Recorder   From: City of Lemoore 
 Kings County Government Center    711 W Cinnamon Drive 
 1400 W Lacey Blvd     Lemoore, CA  93245 
 Hanford, CA  93230 
 
 
 
Project Title:  Streets and Roads Maintenance and Reconstruction 
Project Location:  Existing street rights of way within the Lemoore City Limits 
City:  Lemoore  County:  Kings 
Description of Project:  Improvement of City streets for the benefit of vehicular traffic. 
Name of Public Agency Approving Project:  City of Lemoore 
Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project:  Public Works Department, City of Lemoore 
 
 
Exempt Status: 
☐  Ministerial (Sec. 21080(b)(1); 15268); 
☐  Declared Emergency (Sec. 21080(b)(3); 15269(a)); 
☐  Emergency Project (Sec. 21080(b)(4); 15269(b)(c)); 
☒  Categorical Exemption. State type and section number:  15301(c)    
☐  Statutory Exemptions. State code number:        
 
 
Reasons why project is exempt:  The project is exempt from provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) pursuant to section 15301(c) of the CEQA Guidelines.  

• Section 15301(c) exempts repair or maintenance of existing highways and streets, sidewalks, gutters, bicycle 
and pedestrian trail, and similar facilities. 

 
 
Contact Person:  Linda Beyersdorf Telephone:  559-924-6734 
 
 
 
 
            
Frank Rivera       Date 
Public Works Director 

20



21



22



“In God We Trust” 
 

                                                                            
 
 
        

     City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6700  Fax (559) 924-6708 

 
 

Staff Report 
 

    Item No: 3-4 
                  
To:  Lemoore City Council 
From: Frank Rivera, Public Works Director   
Date: March 8, 2019  Meeting Date:    March 19, 2019 
Subject: Abatement of Public Nuisances and Setting a Public Hearing – 

Resolution 2019-11 
 
Strategic Initiative:  

☒ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☐ Fiscally Sound Government ☐ Operational Excellence 

☒ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☐ Not Applicable  

 
Proposed Motion: 
Approve Resolution 2019-11, and set a public hearing to abate structures as listed in the 
same. 
 
Subject/Discussion: 
Staff has attempted to work with the property owners of properties listed on Resolution 
2019-11.  The properties have become a public nuisance and safety violation, as defined 
in Section 8-2-1 of the Municipal Code.  Staff will be contacting these property owners 
about the abatement and public hearing. 
 
The process for abatement of these buildings is as follows: 
 
1. Council is to pass a resolution declaring properties a nuisance and set a hearing 

date 30 days thereafter. 
 
2. Public Hearing before City Council to determine the extent of the problem and to 

direct the abatement of the nuisances either by repair, or by removal, of the 
building(s). 

 

23



“In God We Trust” 
 

3. At conclusion of hearing, Council will direct owner as to findings and provide 30 days 
for owner to complete the work described in the abatement resolution.  If not 
completed, direct Public Works Director to have Council direction carried out. 

 
4. The abatement work (either demolition or repair) is completed. 
 
5. Hearing on report of abatement costs to Council. 
 
6. File lien to recover abatement costs of the City. 
 
To begin this process, City Council must approve Resolution 2019-11, and set a public 
hearing for May 7, 2019.  
  
Financial Consideration(s): 
None at this time 
 
Alternatives or Pros/Cons: 
Pros:  

• Eliminate chronic nuisance for Police Department, prevent fire hazard, prevent 
potential of homesteading, enforce noise and dust control ordinance.  

Cons:  
• No cons noted associated with the approval of Resolution 2019-XX, establishing 

the abatement process. 
 
Commission/Board Recommendation: 
Not applicable  
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that City Council approve Resolution 2019-11, and set a public hearing 
for May 7, 2019. 
 
 
Attachments:   Review: Date: 
☒ Resolution: 2019-11  ☐ Asst. City Manager     
☐ Ordinance:   ☒ City Attorney 03/13/19 
☐ Map   ☒ City Clerk 03/13/19 
☐ Contract   ☒ City Manager 03/12/19 
☐ Other      

 List:  

24



RESOLUTION 2019-11 

1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-11 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
DECLARING A PUBLIC NUISANCE AT 234 G STREET (020-021-006) AND THE 
EMPTY LOT LOCATED WEST OF COTTONWOOD LANE AND EAST OF 19TH 

AVENUE BETWEEN CHERRY LANE AND TAMMY LANE (023-290-030) IN 
LEMOORE, AND SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING THEREON 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has received a report that certain buildings and structures 

located in the City of Lemoore constitute a public nuisance under the provisions of Section 8-2-1 

of the Lemoore Municipal Code and are listed as follows: 

ASSESSOR PARCEL NO.  ADDRESS 

  020-021-006    234 “G” Street 

023-290-030                                       Empty Lot located West of Cottonwood 

Lane and East of 19th Avenue between 

Cherry Lane and Tammy Lane 

              WHEREAS, the Council has received further information that the buildings have become 

unsafe from neglect, decay or other causes and currently constitute either a fire hazard or are 

dangerous to human life or may become a location for vagrants or criminal activity; and 

 WHEREAS, the owners of said properties have been requested to take action to eliminate 

conditions constituting a public nuisance on the site and have taken no action; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is now necessary to commence a 

process, under Chapter 2 of Title 8 of the Lemoore Municipal Code to address the abatement of 

the public nuisances which exist at:  

ASSESSOR PARCEL NO.   ADDRESS 

020-021-006    234 “G” Street 

023-290-030                                       Empty Lot located West of Cottonwood 

Lane and East of 19th Avenue between 

Cherry Lane and Tammy Lane 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Lemoore 

as follows: 

 1.  The City hereby declares its intent to commence abatement proceedings in the manner 

described in Chapter 2 of Title 8 of the Lemoore Municipal Code with respect to the properties 

listed below in the City of Lemoore, on which there exists a public nuisance. 

25



RESOLUTION 2019-11 

2 
 

ASSESSOR PARCEL NO.  ADDRESS 

  020-021-006    234 “G” Street 

023-290-030                                       Empty Lot located West of Cottonwood 

Lane and East of 19th Avenue between 

Cherry Lane and Tammy Lane 

2.  Said properties are described as assessor parcel numbers 020-021-006 and 023-290-

030 in the City of Lemoore, County of Kings. 

 3.  May 7, 2019 commencing at 7:30 p.m. in the chambers of the City Council, is hereby 

selected as the time and the place of a public hearing, described in Section 8-2-4 of the Municipal 

Code for the receipt of evidence and testimony regarding the condition of the said properties and 

the appropriate and necessary procedures or work to abate the public nuisance which exists on said 

properties. 

 4.   The City staff is directed to post notices of the public hearing and the resolution and to 

otherwise follow the processes described in Chapter 2 of Title 8 for the public hearing hereby 

established. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lemoore at a Regular 

Meeting held on 19th day of February 2019 by the following vote: 

 
 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSENT:  

 ABSTAIN: 

 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED: 
 
 
 
             
Mary J. Venegas Edward Neal 
City Clerk Mayor 

 

26



“In God We Trust” 
 

                                                                            
 
 
        

     City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6700  Fax (559) 924-6708 

 
 

Staff Report 
 

    Item No: 3-5 
                  
To:  Lemoore City Council 
From: Frank Rivera, Public Works Director   
Date: February 27, 2019  Meeting Date:    March 19, 2019 
Subject: Purchase of a New Hook Truck and Two Skids 
 
Strategic Initiative:  

☐ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☐ Fiscally Sound Government ☒ Operational Excellence 

☐ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☐ Not Applicable  

 
Proposed Motion: 
Approve the specifications and authorization to use the Sourcewell (formerly NJPA) 
procurement contract for the acquisition of a new Hook Truck plus two skids for a total 
amount not to exceed $268,201.81. 
 
Subject/Discussion: 
In FY 2018-19 the water department budgeted for the purchase of a Hook Truck with one 
dump body skid and one water tank skid.  This new Hook Truck will give the staff the 
ability to use multiple skids for different types of jobs throughout the City. Using the dump 
body skid, staff will be able to haul two and half times more dirt/rock material than with 
our current 1988 GMC dump truck (#36). Using the water tank skid, staff will be able to 
transport water recovered from flushed hydrants to use at varies locations for solar panel 
maintenance and City irrigation.  
 
The City received a quote through Sourcewell, which is a public agency service 
cooperative that serves over 50,000 members.  Through national solicitations, they 
provide the opportunity for members to purchase through nationally leveraged, 
competitively bid contracts.  Sourcewell is a Municipal Contracting agency established to 
allow participating municipal agencies to reduce the cost of procurement by leveraging 
the benefits of contract purchasing. 
 

27



“In God We Trust” 
 

E.M. Tharp Inc. prepared a Sourcewell quote for the City on January 29, 2019 with a price 
of $268,201.81 for a new 2020 Peterbilt 348, Hookloader Body plus two skids.   
 
Financial Consideration(s): 
Water Autos and Trucks (4250-4840) has an approved budget of $300,000.  The total 
price for the new Hook Truck plus two skids is $268,201.81.   
 
Alternatives or Pros/Cons: 
Pros:  

• One specialty vehicle that provides mobility to accomplish multiple types of tasks. 
• The Hook Truck plus the two skids will replace two older vehicles. 

Cons:  
• None noted 

 
Commission/Board Recommendation: 
Not applicable. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that Council approve the purchase of the new Hook Truck plus two 
skids 
 
 
 
Attachments:   Review: Date: 
☐ Resolution:   ☐ Asst. City Manager     
☐ Ordinance:   ☒ City Attorney 03/13/19 
☐ Map   ☒ City Clerk 03/13/19 
☐ Contract   ☒ City Manager 03/13/19 
☐ Other    

 List: Estimate 

28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



“In God We Trust” 
 

                                                                            
 
 
        

     City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6700  Fax (559) 924-6708 

 
 

Staff Report 
 

    Item No: 3-6 
                  
To:  Lemoore City Council  
From: Nathan Olson, City Manager    
Date: March 11, 2019 Meeting Date:    March 19, 2019 
Subject: Approval of Job Descriptions and/or Salary Ranges for City Positions – 

Resolution 2019-12 
 
Strategic Initiative:  

☐ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☒ Fiscally Sound Government ☒ Operational Excellence 

☐ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☐ Not Applicable  

 
Proposed Motion: 
Approve Resolution 2019-12 adopting job descriptions and salary ranges for city positions 
and authorize the City Manager, or his designee, to add to the salary schedule. 
 
Subject/Discussion: 
The City Manager’s office is evaluating positions associated with budget development. 
The following positions were previously approved by City Council, however updated 
salary ranges are necessary: 
 

City Clerk/Executive Assistant 
Finance Manager 

 
The positions listed above have been vacant for several years. In that time, the City has 
undergone an extensive review of job descriptions, salaries and benefits. When the City 
Manager seeks to fill these positions in the future, an amended salary range needs to be 
assigned, consistent with the salary schedule that was adopted by City Council on 
November 7, 2017.  
 
 
 

45



“In God We Trust” 
 

Staff is recommending that the following salary ranges be adopted for the positions listed 
below: 
 
City Clerk/Executive Assistant Range 75 $57,510 – $73,399/year 
Finance Manager Range 112 $83,107 - $106,068/year 

 
Additionally, staff is seeking to establish new job descriptions, and associated salary 
ranges, for the following: 
 

Human Resources / Risk Management Manager 
Assistant City Manager / Administrative Services Director  

 
The City Manager would like to create two new positions, in the event that a 
reorganization of the City would be financially beneficial. Currently, the City Clerk and 
Human Resources Manager are a combined position. Due to the increase in activity in 
the Human Resources and Risk Management divisions, a manager specific to those two 
divisions would be necessary to ensure that best practices are met.  
 
With the development of next year’s budget, the City Manager is also reviewing the 
possibility of the reclassification of the Assistant City Manager to the Assistant City 
Manager/Administrative Services Director. This would provide the necessary changes to 
the job description for oversight of the Finance Department.  
 
Creation of new positions also requires establishment of salary ranges for the new 
positions. Below, is a breakdown of the recommended salary ranges: 
 
Human Resources/Risk 
Management Manager 

Range 112 $83,107 - $106,068/year 

Assistant City Manager – 
Administrative Services Director 

Range 140 $109,808 - $140,146/year 

 
Financial Consideration(s): 
There are no financial impacts for approval of the job descriptions and establishment of 
salary ranges.  
 
Alternatives or Pros/Cons: 
Pros: 

• Provides options for City Staff when developing the annual budget 
• Potential of up to $100,000 salary savings to general fund in the next fiscal year 

 
Cons: 

• None noted 
 
Commission/Board Recommendation: 
Not applicable. 
 
 
 
 

46



“In God We Trust” 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
City staff recommends City Council approve Resolution 2019-12 which approves job 
descriptions and/or salary ranges associated with city positions.  
 
 
 
 
Attachments:   Review: Date: 
☒ Resolution: 2019-12  ☐ Asst. City Manager     
☐ Ordinance:   ☒ City Attorney 03/13/19 
☐ Map   ☒ City Clerk 03/13/19 
☐ Contract   ☒ City Manager 03/13/19 
☒ Other      

 List:  Job Descriptions 

47



RESOLUTION 2019-12 

1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-12 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
AMENDING THE CLASSIFICATION AND SALARY SCHEDULE 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lemoore previously adopted 

Resolution 2017-28 and its attached Classification and Salary Schedule, with an effective 
date of October 17, 2017; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Lemoore as follows: 
 
1. The following positions will be added:   
 

a. The City Clerk/Executive Assistant position will be allocated to the City 
Clerk’s Department and shall be an unrepresented, exempt position, with a 
salary range of $57,510 to $73,399 annually; 

 
b. The Finance Manager position will be allocated to the Finance Department 

and shall be an unrepresented, exempt position, with a salary range of $83,107 
to $106,068 annually; 

 
c. The Human Resources/Risk Management Manager will be allocated to the 

City Manager’s Department and shall be an unrepresented, exempt position, 
with a salary range of $83,107 to $106,068 annually; and 

 
d. The Assistant City Manager/Administrative Services Director shall be 

allocated to the City Manager’s Department and shall be an unrepresented, 
exempt position with a salary range of $109,808 to $140,146 annually; 

 
2. The job description attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby adopted as the job 

description for the respective City positions. 
 
3. The City Manager and staff are hereby authorized to implement this Resolution and 

fill the positions if vacant. 
 
4. This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
/ 
 
/ 
 
/ 
 
/ 
 

48



RESOLUTION 2019-12 

2 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lemoore at a regular 
meeting held on the 19th day of March 2019 by the following vote: 
 
 
 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSENT: 

 ABSTAINING: 

 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
_________________________   ____________________________ 
Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk    Edward Neal, Mayor 
 

 

49



CITY OF LEMOORE 
 

CITY CLERK/EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT 
 
 
Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by employees in the class.  Specifications 
are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job. 
 
 
DEFINITION 
 
To coordinate activities and operations of the City Clerk’s Office and to perform a wide variety of responsible, 
confidential, and complex administrative, programmatic, and secretarial duties requiring a broad knowledge 
of the City in support of top policy makers within the City; to prepare reports, staff special projects, track 
budgets and expenditures, track project timelines and keep schedules; to prepare meeting agendas and minutes 
and, coordinate events; to preform advanced office duties; to organize and maintain records; and to prepare 
regulatory and other reports.  
 
 
SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 
 
Receives administrative direction from the City Manager.  
 
 
ESSENTIAL FUNCTION STATEMENTS--Essential responsibilities and duties may include, but are not 
limited to, the following: 
 
Essential Functions: 
1. Coordinate assigned services and activities of the City Clerk’s Office.  

2. Participate in and direct the preparation of City Council agendas and packets; create initial agenda for 
City Manager's review; distribute packets to Council members; attend meetings and take and transcribe 
minutes.  

3. Actively manage and actively participate in the development and implementation of organizational and 
departmental goals, objectives, policies and priorities for assigned programs; recommend and administer 
policies and procedures. 

4. Type and proofread a wide variety of reports, letters, memoranda and correspondence from rough draft 
or verbal instruction; independently compose correspondence related to assigned responsibilities.  

5. Coordinate and conduct City elections; prepare appropriate resolutions and ordinances for Council 
adoption; process election booklet and all forms necessary for candidates to run for office; research and 
ensure compliance with applicable election laws.  

6. Maintain custody of official records and archives of the City including ordinances, resolutions, 
contracts, agreements, deeds, insurance documents and minutes. 

7. Coordinate operational administrative activities and resources for assigned service area or top 
management position; receive, research, gather information, process, and respond to inquiries and 
requests; assist in conveying and implementing policies and procedures of assigned area. 

8. Exhibit a service orientation toward internal and external customers and maintain productive working 
relationships.  

50



CITY OF LEMOORE 
City Clerk / Executive Assistant (Continued) 

9. Manage calendars; arrange meeting location and equipment logistics; prepare and distribute agendas, 
correspondence, informational materials and meeting minutes, ensuring documents adhere to 
applicable standards.  

10. Coordinate, make, process, and confirm staff travel arrangements; prepare related expense reports. 

11. Greet internal and external customers via telephone and in‐person; provide information and respond to 
requests, researching and resolving inquiries and issues, and convey information regarding policies and 
procedures; seek appropriate contact or resource for information as required and provide responses in 
a timely manner. 

12. Enter and maintain data in department databases; research and locate information, provide 
status/disposition updates, prepare documents and generate reports that are of a time‐sensitive nature 
and adhere to applicable standards. 

13. Type, word process, and proofread a variety of reports, letters, memoranda, correspondence, 
resolutions, ordinances, statistical charts, and other documents; types from rough draft, verbal 
instruction, or transcribing machine; independently compose correspondence and reports related to 
assigned area of responsibility. 

14. Initiate, organize, maintain, and control access to complex filing systems and records including highly 
sensitive files; conduct periodic retention and purging of files in compliance with applicable guidelines. 

15. Based on assignment, may perform the following specialized activities: prepare and process financial 
administrative documents related to accounts payable, accounts receivable, purchasing, and travel 
expenses; provide budget tracking and expense reporting; provide interpretation and translation 
services; maintain necessary forms, supplies and information resources in assigned locations; and/or, 
other related activities. 

16. Respond to and resolve difficult and sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints. 

17. Perform related duties and responsibilities as required. 
 
QUALIFICATIONS 
 
Knowledge of: 

Operational characteristics, services and activities of a City Clerk's Office.  
Organization and function of municipal government. 
Rules and regulations governing local municipal elections. 
Principles and practices of municipal budget preparation and administration.  
Principles and practices of contract administration. 
Election laws and procedures.  
Political reform requirements.  
English usage, spelling, grammar and punctuation.  
Principles of business letter writing and basic report preparation.  
Principles and procedures of record keeping.  
Modern office procedures, methods and computer equipment.  
Pertinent federal, state and local laws, codes and regulations. 
 

Ability to: 
Manage and direct the comprehensive programs of a City Clerk’s Office.  
Perform complex and confidential administrative support duties in support of management staff. 

51



CITY OF LEMOORE 
City Clerk / Executive Assistant (Continued) 

Participate in the development and administration of division goals, objectives, and procedures. 
Coordinate municipal elections. 
Develop and administer an efficient records management system. 
Work cooperatively with other departments. 
Assist in the preparation of division budgets.  
Prepare clear and concise administrative and financial reports. 
Understand the organization and operation of the City and of outside agencies as necessary to assume 

assigned responsibilities. 
Interpret and apply federal, state and local policies, laws and regulations. 
Independently prepare correspondence and memoranda. 
Type at a speed necessary for successful job performance. 
Maintain confidential records and reports. 
Respond to requests and inquiries from the general public. 
Work independently in the absence of supervision.  
Attend meetings at irregular hours.  
Operate and use modern office equipment including a computer. 
Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 
Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work. 
 
Experience and Training Guidelines 
Any combination of experience and training that would likely provide the required knowledge and abilities is 
qualifying.  A typical way to obtain the knowledge and abilities would be: 
 
 Experience: 
 Three years of experience performing duties as City Clerk, or Deputy City Clerk. Five years of 

increasingly responsible secretarial and office administrative support experience.  
 
 Training: 
 Equivalent to an Associate of Arts or Science degree from an accredited college or university with major 

course work in public or business administration, or a related field. A Bachelor’s degree in a related 
field is desirable. 

 
WORKING CONDITIONS 
 
Environmental Conditions: 
Office environment; exposure to computer screens. 
 
Physical Conditions: 
Essential and marginal functions may require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting for 
prolonged periods of time. 
 

52



 

Adopted 9/15/15 

CITY OF LEMOORE 
 

FINANCE MANAGER 
 
 
Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by employees in the class.  Specifications 
are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job. 
 
 
DEFINITION 
 
Under general direction, responsible for supervising staff; overseeing day-to-day operations; planning 
operational activities; monitoring departmental budget; identifying and resolving financial discrepancies; 
interpreting and applying community applicable codes, laws, rules and regulations; training city staff on 
policies and procedures; handling escalated customer service issues; coordinating activities with internal staff 
and external agencies; and developing in and implementing operation procedures. Oversee activities and 
operations of the Finance Department, including utility billing, accounts payable, payroll, purchasing, 
business licensing and budget activities. 
 
SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 
 
Receives general direction from the Finance Director.  
 
Exercises direct and indirect supervision and management over professional, technical and clerical staff. 
 
ESSENTIAL FUNCTION STATEMENTS--Essential responsibilities and duties may include, but are not 
limited to, the following: 
 
Essential Functions: 
• Assists with full management responsibility for assigned services and activities of the Finance 

Department, including utility billing, accounts payable, payroll, business licenses, purchasing, and assists 
in the preparation of the City operating and capital improvement plan budgets. 

• Exhibits a service orientation toward internal and external customers and maintains productive working 
relationships. 

• Actively manage and actively participate in the development and implementation of organizational and 
departmental goals, objectives, policies and priorities for assigned programs; recommend and administer 
policies and procedures. 

• Supervise staff to include: prioritizing and assigning work; conducting performance evaluations; 
ensure staff is trained; ensure employees follow policies and procedures; maintain a safe working 
environment; and, provide hiring, termination, and disciplinary recommendations. 

• Plan and oversee the daily operations of the organization’s financial activities.  Review and provide 
guidance and approval in daily processing activities ensuring accuracy and compliance with 
applicable state, federal and local regulations and with generally accepted accounting principles.   

• Manage audits, identify discrepancies and implement corrective actions. 

• Research and analyze fiscal data and information.  Develop and prepare related reports.  Provide 
assessments and recommendations. 

53



CITY OF LEMOORE 
Finance Manager (Continued) 

 

 
 

• Provide training, explain and interpret applicable policies, procedures and regulations.   

• Respond to questions and requests for information from staff and the general public.  Research and 
resolve escalated disputes and issues.  Collaborate with internal and external representatives to 
resolve issues. 

• Develop, implement, and administer operating policies and procedures and monitor 
compliance.  Develop and implement department budget.  Monitor expenditures to ensure compliance 
with approved budget. 

• Monitor and evaluate the efficiency and effectiveness of service delivery methods and procedures; 
recommend, within departmental policy, appropriate service and staffing levels.  

• Oversee utility billing cycles including collections and the creation of new accounts; prepare reports on 
potential changes to utility billing. 

• Supervise accounts payable functions including processing of invoices; review warrant registers prior to 
payment to vendors. 

• Receive and approve payroll information including payroll warrants and warrants for taxes and 
deductions. 

• Assist in the monitoring and accounting for all City debts. 

• Participate in annual City audits; meet and confer with auditor; compile all necessary information; 
research and explain areas of concern. 

• Serve as the liaison or designee for the Finance Department with other divisions, departments and outside 
agencies; negotiate and resolve sensitive and controversial issues. 

• Provide responsible staff assistance to the Finance Director.  

• Attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new trends and innovations in the 
field of accounting and financial services. 

• Perform related duties and responsibilities as required. 
QUALIFICATIONS 
 
Knowledge of: 
Operational characteristics, services and activities of a municipal financial management program. 
Principles and practices of accounting and financial management.  
Principles and practices of program development and administration. 
Methods and techniques of auditing.  
Principles and practices of payroll administration. 
Principles and practices of municipal budget preparation and administration. 
Principles of business letter writing and basic report preparation. 
Principles and procedures of financial record keeping and reporting. 
Intermediate mathematical principles. 
Principles of supervision, training and performance evaluation. 
Pertinent federal, state and local laws, codes and regulations. 
 
 

54



CITY OF LEMOORE 
Finance Manager (Continued) 

 

 
 

Ability to: 
Oversee and participate in the management of a comprehensive financial management program. 
Oversee, direct and coordinate the work of lower level staff. 
Plan, organize, direct and coordinate the work of lower level staff. 
Supervise, train and evaluate staff. 
Manage and/or supervise all City accounting functions. 
Participate in auditing activities. 
Participate in the development and administration of division goals, objectives and procedures. 
Administer large program and department budgets. 
Prepare clear and concise administrative and financial reports. 
Analyze problems, identify alternative solutions, project consequences of proposed actions and implement 

recommendations in support of goals. 
Research, analyze and evaluate new service delivery methods and techniques. 
Interpret and apply federal, state and local policies, laws and regulations. 
Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 
Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work. 
Maintain effective audio-visual discrimination and perception needed for making observations, 

communicating with others, reading, writing and operating assigned equipment. 
Maintain mental capacity which allows the capability of making sound decisions and demonstrating 

intellectual capabilities. 
Maintain physical condition appropriate to the performance of assigned duties and responsibilities. 
 
Experience and Training Guidelines 
Any combination of experience and training that would likely provide the required knowledge and abilities is 
qualifying.  A typical way to obtain the knowledge and abilities would be: 
 
 Experience: 
 Five years of increasingly responsible accounting and financial management experience including two 

years in a responsible supervisory capacity, with two years’ of experience in municipal accounting. 
 
 Training: 
 A Bachelor’s Degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in business 

administration, accounting or a related field required. 
 
 A Master’s Degree, Certified Public Accountant or equivalent is preferred. 
 
WORKING CONDITIONS 
May be required to work on evenings, weekends and holidays. 
 
Environmental Conditions: 
Office environment; exposure to computer screens. 
 
Physical Conditions: 
Essential functions may require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting for prolonged periods of 
time. 
 
Ability to lift up to 25 pounds. 

55



 

DRAFT 2/2018 

CITY OF LEMOORE 
 

HUMAN RESOURCES / RISK MANAGEMENT MANAGER 
 
 

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by employees in the class.  
Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job. 
 
 
DEFINITION 
 
To perform a wide variety of confidential and complex administrative, analytical and managerial work in 
the management of Human Resources and Risk Management; to perform professional level personnel work 
in recruitment, examination, classification, employee relations, job analysis, classification and 
compensation, disciplinary actions, training, employee assistance; to plan, organize, direct and coordinate 
risk management activities including liability, property, workers’ compensation and unemployment 
programs; and as assigned oversee lower level staff. 
 
 
SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 
 
Receives administrative direction from the City Manager, or assigned Department Head. 
 
May exercise direct supervision over lower level staff. 
 
ESSENTIAL FUNCTION STATEMENTS--Essential responsibilities and duties may include, but are 
not limited to, the following: 
 
Essential Functions: 

1. Coordinate assigned services and activities of the Human Resources Division. 

2. Assist and participate in the development and implementation of goals, objectives, policies, and 
priorities for assigned programs; recommend and administer policies and procedures. 

3. Participate in the development and administration of the division’s annual budget; participate in the 
forecast of funds needed for staffing, equipment, materials, and supplies of assigned divisions; 
monitor and review expenditures. 

4. Type and proofread a wide variety of reports, letters, memoranda and correspondence from rough 
draft or verbal instruction; independently compose correspondence related to assigned 
responsibilities.  

5. Maintain employee records including hires, terminations, promotions, and other personnel data.  

6. Advise the City Council, City Manager, Department Heads, and other managers on employee 
relations matters. 

7. Negotiate memorandum of understanding with employee groups, represent the City in grievance and 
disciplinary actions, and conduct internal investigations as assigned. 

8. Administer City-wide employee benefit and retirement program activities; provide employees with 
information regarding benefit programs and eligibility; enroll employees in benefits. 

9. Receive and file claims and lawsuits against the City; prepare and certify information and/or provide 
disposition.  

56



CITY OF LEMOORE 
Human Resources / Risk Management Manager (Continued) 

10. Plans, organizes, and direct the activities of the City’s risk management program, including general 
liability, workers’ compensation, and property programs. 

11. Establishes and reviews insurance requirements. 

12. Coordinates activities involving claims related to the City’s property, liability and workers 
compensation insurance, including but not limited to administering claims processing and 
maintaining communications with claimant, insurance adjuster, authority management and legal 
counsel, as appropriate. 

13. Coordinates and authorizes medical care and treatment for industrial injury or illness; administers 
and makes recommendations with regard to applications for industrial disability retirements. 

14. As assigned, oversee and supervise lower level staff; assign work activities, projects, and programs; 
review and evaluate work products, methods and procedures; meet with staff to identify and resolve 
problems. 

15. Serve as the liaison for the Human Resources Division with other divisions, departments, and outside 
agencies; negotiate and resolve sensitive and controversial issues, as assigned. 

16. Coordinate assigned department activities with those of other departments; ensure accuracy and 
completeness of assigned duties. 

17. Serve on a variety of boards, commissions, and committees, as assigned; prepare and present staff 
reports and other necessary correspondence. 

18. Provide responsible staff assistance to the City Manager, or assigned Department Head; conduct a 
variety of organizational studies, investigations, and operational studies; recommend modifications 
to assigned programs, policies, and procedures as appropriate. 

19. Attend and participate in professional group meetings; maintain awareness of new trends and 
developments in fields related to human resources functions; incorporate new developments as 
appropriate.  

20. Respond to and resolve difficult and sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints. 

21. Perform related duties as required. 

 
QUALIFICATIONS 
 
Knowledge of: 
Operational characteristics, services and activities of a human resources program.  
Organization and function of municipal government. 
Principles and practices of program development and administration. 
Recruitment and selection techniques and procedures.  
Benefit and retirement system administration. 
Principles and practices of employer-employee relations. 
Principles and practices of municipal budget preparation and administration.  
Principles and practices of contract administration. 
Principles of supervision, training and performance evaluation.  
Principles and practices of public relations. 
English usage, spelling, grammar and punctuation.  
Principles of business letter writing and basic report preparation.  
Principles and procedures of record keeping.  
Modern office procedures, methods and computer equipment.  
Pertinent federal, state and local laws, codes and regulations. 

57



CITY OF LEMOORE 
Human Resources / Risk Management Manager (Continued) 

 
Ability to: 
Manage and direct the comprehensive programs of the Human Resources Division 
Oversee and participate in the implementation of a comprehensive human resources program. 
Participate in the development and administration of division goals, objectives, and procedures. 
Manage, direct and coordinate the work of lower level staff. 
Develop and administer an efficient records management system. 
Assist in the preparation of division budgets.  
Prepare clear and concise administrative and financial reports. 
Negotiate labor agreements, as assigned.  
Analyze complex administrative, personnel, benefit, and risk management issues. 
Interpret, explain and enforce department policies and procedures. 
Understand the organization and operation of the City and of outside agencies as necessary to assume 

assigned responsibilities. 
Interpret and apply federal, state and local policies, laws and regulations. 
Independently prepare correspondence and memoranda. 
Type at a speed necessary for successful job performance. 
Maintain confidential records and reports. 
Respond to requests and inquiries from the general public. 
Work independently in the absence of supervision.  
Attend meetings at irregular hours.  
Operate and use modern office equipment including a computer. 
Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 
Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work. 

 
Experience and Training Guidelines 
Any combination of experience and training that would likely provide the required knowledge and abilities 
is qualifying.  A typical way to obtain the knowledge and abilities would be: 
 
 Experience: 

Four years of increasingly responsible administrative, or operational, experience in a public agency and 
increasingly responsible human resources experience, preferably in a municipal government setting.  
 
Training: 
Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in business 
administration, public administration, human resources or a related field. 
 

WORKING CONDITIONS 
 
Environmental Conditions: 
Office environment; exposure to computer screens. 
 
Physical Conditions: 
Essential and marginal functions may require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting for 
prolonged periods of time. 

58



 

DRAFT 3/2019 

CITY OF LEMOORE 
 

ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER/ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DIRECTOR 
 
 

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by employees in the class.  
Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job. 
 
 
DEFINITION 
 
To participate in the formulation, development and implementation of citywide policy; to plan, organize, 
staff, direct, develop and control programs and functions assigned of Finance, Personnel, and Risk 
Management; to provide leadership and policy direction to assigned departments and to department heads 
and managers; to foster cooperative working relationships with City departments and with 
intergovernmental and regulatory agencies and various public and private groups; to provide highly 
responsible and complex professional assistance to City management staff; and to perform related work as 
required. 
 
SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 
 
Receives general administrative direction from the City Manager. 
 
Exercises supervision over management, supervisory, professional, technical, and clerical staff. 
 
ESSENTIAL FUNCTION STATEMENTS--Essential responsibilities and duties may include, but are 
not limited to, the following: 
 
Essential Functions: 

1. Serve as a member of the City Manager’s Executive Team Staff, involved in the formulation and 
execution of citywide policies and long and short-term strategies. 

2. Assist the City Manager in planning, organizing and directing the services and activities of City 
departments and programs; relieve the City Manager of day-to-day routine associated with 
governmental operations of the City.  

3. Assume full management responsibility for all services and activities of the Finance Department 
including utility billing, accounts payable, payroll, business licenses, purchasing, and oversee the 
preparation of the annual City budget. 

4. Receive and approve payroll information including payroll warrants and warrants for taxes and 
deductions. 

5. Provide leadership and direction to assigned departments or divisions. 

6. Monitor and account for all City debts; transfer City funds to and between accounts as needed. 

7. Participate in annual City audits; meet and confer with auditor; compile all necessary information; 
research and explain areas of concern. 

8. Assume responsibility for the adequate and accurate maintenance of City accounting records; prepare 
financial statements and cost reports. 

9. Assume responsibility for the City’s budget process; analyze expenditures and revenues for budgetary 
purposes; prepare annual budget documents for submittal to the City Manager and City Council; 
prepare and submit monthly expenditure and revenue reports for all City funds.  

59



CITY OF LEMOORE 
Assistant City Manager / Administrative Services Director (continued) 

10. Provide oversight and direction regarding the City’s economic development strategies and projects. 

11. Negotiate contracts and agreements; coordinate with legal counsel and City department 
representatives to determine City needs and requirements for contractual services. 

12. Provide oversight and direction regarding the City’s emergency management practices.  

13. Contribute to the overall quality of the City’s services by developing, reviewing, and implementing 
policies and procedures to meet legal requirements and City needs; monitor and evaluate the 
efficiency and effectiveness of service delivery methods and procedures; assess and monitor the 
distribution of work, support systems, and internal reporting relationships; identify opportunities for 
improvement; direct the implementation of change.  

14. Select, train, motivate, and direct personnel; evaluate and review work for acceptability and 
conformance with department standards, including program and project priorities and performance 
evaluations; provide or coordinate staff training; works with employees to correct deficiencies; 
implement discipline and termination procedures; respond to staff questions and concerns. 

15. Explain and interpret City programs, policies, and activities; negotiate and resolve sensitive, 
significant, and controversial issues. 

16. Exhibit a service orientation toward internal and external customers and maintains productive 
working relationships. 

17. Supervise staff to include: prioritize and assign work; conduct performance evaluations; ensure staff 
is trained; ensure employees follow policies and procedures; maintain a safe working environment; 
and, make hiring, termination, and disciplinary recommendations. 

18. Ensure compliance with applicable Federal, state, and local laws, regulations, codes, and/or 
standards. 

19. Serve as a liaison with internal departments, officials, external organizations and public 
representatives.  

20. Appear before City Council, public agencies, business and civic groups and other organizations in 
the presentation and discussion of assigned city functions, departments and related proposals, projects 
and policies, meetings, etc.  

21. Prepare, review, interpret, and analyzes a variety of information, data, and reports. 

22. Recommend and implement policies and procedures to improve operational effectiveness and 
enhancements to services or programs. 

23. Participate in the development and administration of the City’s budget. 

24. Prepare cost estimates and budget recommendations. Monitors and controls expenditures. 

25. Coordinate the City Council agenda process including scheduling items and reviewing staff reports 
for completeness, consistency, and policy implications. 

26. Assist in planning and the development of short and long term goals. Coordinate operational and 
program efforts in alignment with goals and objectives related to assigned area of responsibility. 

27. Prepare a variety of complex correspondence, memoranda and administrative staff reports. 

28. Serve as City Manager upon the request, or absence, of the City Manager.  

29. Perform duties of the City Treasurer. 

30. Perform related duties as required. 

60



CITY OF LEMOORE 
Assistant City Manager / Administrative Services Director (continued) 

QUALIFICATIONS 
 
Knowledge of: 

Operations, services, and activities of a municipality. 
Modern and best management principles and practices of municipal government administration.  
Theories, principles, practices and methods of supervision, training and performance evaluation. 
Basic mathematical principles. 
Principles and practices of municipal budgeting and finance.  
Generally accepted accounting principles. 
Principles and practices of contract administration.  
Principles and practices of program development and administration.  
Methods and techniques of auditing. 
Principles and practices of payroll administration. 
Principles of effective public relations and inter-relationships with community groups and agencies, private 

businesses and other levels of government.  
Office procedures, methods, and equipment including computers and applicable software applications such 

as word processing, spreadsheets, and databases.  
Principles and procedures of record keeping.  
Principles of business letter writing and basic report preparation.  
Pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes and regulations 
 
Ability to: 

Provide effective leadership and consultation to department directors, managers, and other City staff and 
coordinate a variety of program activities. 

Oversee and participate in the management of a comprehensive financial management program. 
Observe and problem solve organizational challenges, technical policies and procedures associated with 

city activities. Advise the City Manager of alternative courses of action and recommendations. 
Exercise independent judgement in the performance of a variety of complex and difficult administrative 

duties. 
Manage and/or supervise all City accounting functions. 
Understand the organization and operation of the City and of outside agencies, as necessary to assume 

assigned responsibility.  
Participate in auditing activities. 
Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work. 
Perform complex, professional and confidential level of support and oversight.  
Provide effective leadership to multiple diverse organizational units.  
Supervise, train and evaluate staff. 
Prepare and administer budgets. 
Independently prepare clear and concise administrative reports. Communicate clearly and concisely, both 

orally and in writing. 
Prepare and administer large program budgets. 
Interpret, explain and enforce department policies and procedures. 
Perform responsible and difficult administrative work involving the use of independent judgment and 

personal initiative. 
Identify and respond to community and City Council issues, concerns and needs. 
Interpret and apply Federal, State and local policies, laws and regulations. 
Maintain confidential records and reports. 
Respond to requests and inquiries from the general public. 
Work independently in the absence of supervision. 

61



CITY OF LEMOORE 
Assistant City Manager / Administrative Services Director (continued) 

Attend meetings at irregular hours. 
Operate and use modern office equipment, including a computer. 
Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 
Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work. 
 
Experience and Training Guidelines 
Any combination of experience and training that would likely provide the required knowledge and abilities 
is qualifying.  A typical way to obtain the knowledge and abilities would be: 
 
 Experience: 

Six years of progressively responsible personnel, finance, administrative or staff experience in 
municipal government, with at least three years experience in the office of a City Manager. 

 
Training: 
A Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in public or 
business administration, finance, accounting or a closely related field. A Master’s degree in public or 
business administration or related field is highly desirable. 

 
WORKING CONDITIONS 
Environmental Conditions: 

Office environment; exposure to computer screens. 

Physical Conditions: 
Essential and marginal functions may require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting for 
prolonged periods of time. 

62



“In God We Trust” 
 

                                                                            
 
 
        

     City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6700  Fax (559) 924-6708 

 
 

Staff Report 
 

    Item No: 5-1 
                  
To:  Lemoore City Council 
From: Nathan Olson, City Manager   
Date: March 7, 2019  Meeting Date:    March 19, 2019 
Subject: Award Contract for Construction Phase Management Services to Vanir 

Construction Management, INC. for TTHM Compliance Order 
 
Strategic Initiative:  

☐ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☐ Fiscally Sound Government ☐ Operational Excellence 

☒ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☐ Not Applicable  

 
Proposed Motion: 
Approve contract with Vanir Construction Management, INC. (Vanir) to assist the City in 
Design/Build Selection and provide construction management services for the TTHM 
Compliance Order project execution and authorize for the City Manager to execute 
required contract documentation. 
 
Subject/Discussion: 
The city received Compliance Order NO. 03-12-14R-004 dated October 27, 2014 for 
nonconformance with the Stage 2 Disinfected Byproduct Rule Maximum Contaminant 
Level for Total Trihalomethanes, Section 64533 (a), Title 22, California Code of 
Regulations. The original order had a compliance deadline of October 31, 2017. Two 
extensions have been granted and the new deadline for compliance is June 30, 2020. 
The city completed an extensive piloting program to ensure compliance with the order. 
The city is currently soliciting Design/Build (DB) teams via the RFQ process. The teams 
were pre-qualified and are putting together final proposals due March 19, ,2019 that will 
come to council soon for approval.  
 
Due to the time limits, size and nature of this project; city staff does not have depth to 
devote to this project as staff is currently at capacity with other projects and the day to 
day operations of the city. The DB model is new to the city of Lemoore. Vanir is well 

63



“In God We Trust” 
 

versed with the DB model and will assist the city in making a recommendation to council. 
Vanir will continue to act on the city’s behalf through the plan development and 
construction of the proposed treatment plants.  
 
The city requested quotes from multiple engineering services. Quotes were received from 
Carollo Engineers, Inc. and Vanir Construction Management, Inc. Vanir’s bid was lowest 
at $136,180 
 
Financial Consideration(s): 
The contract amount of $136,180 will be paid out of Fund 160, CIP 5202 and are bond 
proceeds ($30,303,757.30) supported by the Proposition 218 process held by the city to 
increase water rates. Resolution 2016-26 was passed approving water rate increases and 
adjustments effective January 1, 2017, January 1, 2018, January 1, 2019 and January 1, 
2020.  
     
Pros: 

• City becomes compliant with Compliance Order NO. 03-12-14R-004. 
• Water quality increases for residents.  

 
Commission/Board Recommendation: 
Not applicable. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that City Council approve the contract in the amount of $136,180 to 
Vanir Construction Management, INC. and authorize the City Manager to execute the 
required contract documents.  
 
 
 
Attachments:   Review: Date: 
☒ Resolution:   2016-26  ☐ Asst. City Manager     
☐ Ordinance:          ☒City Attorney 03/13/19 
☐ Map   ☒ City Clerk 03/13/19 
☒ Contract   ☒ City Manager 03/07/19 
☒ Other     

 List: Vanir Proposal Attachment “A” 
        Compliance Order 

64



CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 This Construction Management Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into 
effective MARCH 19, 2019, by and between the City of Lemoore (“City”) and Vanir 
Construction Management, Inc., (“Construction Manager”). 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 
 
 1. RETENTION OF CONSTRUCTION MANAGER.  City and Construction 
Manager agree that Construction Manager shall be retained to assist in the development and 
construction of the Water Treatment Plant Project (the “Project”).  The Construction Manager 
shall be one of the City's representatives and agents on the Project.  The Construction Manager 
shall be responsible for the overall administration of all work on the Project.  The Construction 
Manager shall be responsible, to the extent described in this Agreement, for ensuring in a 
competent and professional manner that the Project is properly completed within the City’s 
Project budget for total construction costs (“City’s budget”) and in accordance with the City’s 
schedule for timely completion of the Project.  The term of this Agreement shall be through final 
completion of the Project work and all applicable warranty periods, which includes completion 
of all Project financial transactions (i.e., all progress and final payments, release of retention, 
change orders and any claims).  Construction Manager, and its subconsultants on this Project, 
shall not be allowed to bid on any of the Project’s construction work.  Construction Manager 
shall comply with any applicable prevailing wage laws.  
 
 2.  PAYMENT OF CONSTRUCTION MANAGER. 
 

A.  For satisfactory performance of the services required by this Agreement 
(“Basic Services”), Construction Manager shall be compensated according to its hourly rate 
schedule (see Exhibit A, attached).  Construction Manager’s total compensation for services 
under this Agreement shall not exceed $_________, which is Construction Manager’s estimate 
of the total cost of its services.  Prior to execution of this Agreement, Construction Manager shall 
submit its calculations, and any other documentation required, to reasonably support its estimate 
of the total cost of its services.  This documentation shall include the anticipated work hours 
required to provide Construction Management services for each phase of the Project, including 
but not limited to pre-design, design, plan check, bidding, construction, and post-construction.   

 
B.  City shall reimburse Construction Manager for reimbursable expenses, as 

defined below, up to a maximum of $_________, which is Construction Manager’s estimate of 
its total reimbursable expenses on this Project.  Prior to execution of this Agreement, 
Construction Manager shall submit calculations, and other documentation required, to reasonably 
support its estimated total reimbursable expenses.  Reimbursable expenses are those out-of-
pocket expenses Construction Manager directly incurs in performing this Agreement.  
Reimbursable expenses for this Project are limited to job office/trailer, site move in/out, trailer 
utilities, phone, phone system, fax, copier, miscellaneous blueprints, postage, messenger, 
computers, vehicle mileage, supplies, furniture, preconstruction expense, and miscellaneous 
expense.  Reimbursable expenses do not include indirect costs, such as general overhead (for 
example, home office overhead, or insurance premiums), for which Construction Manager must 

65



 2 
 

pay out of its compensation for services under Section A., above.  Reimbursable expenses do not 
include general conditions construction work (including but not limited to equipment rentals, 
temporary toilets, dust control, temporary barricades, site security, worker safety, temporary 
water, temporary power, and janitorial and debris services), which shall be included in the bid 
package to be awarded.   

 
C.  Construction Manager shall submit monthly invoices for its time and 

reimbursable expenses.  The invoices shall list the employees, and their time entries, services 
performed, and all reimbursable expenses for the previous calendar month.  If City disputes a 
portion of the invoice, it shall notify Construction Manager within twenty (20) days and meet 
and confer with Construction Manager to resolve the dispute.  City shall pay the undisputed 
amount of any invoice within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice.  Failure of City to dispute 
an invoice within twenty (20) days shall not act as a waiver of City’s rights to later challenge the 
validity of the invoice and to withhold the potentially invalid portion. 

 
D.   If Construction Manager reaches a not-to-exceed amount set forth in this 

Section 2 before its services under this Agreement are complete, Construction Manager shall 
complete its services under this Agreement and shall not be entitled to any further compensation.  
For any pre-construction phase of Construction Manager’s work, Construction Manager may 
only invoice fifteen percent (15%) of the total not-to-exceed compensation.   

 
           E.  City may withhold from payments to Construction Manager to the extent 

that Construction Manager’s wrongful acts or omissions caused City to incur damages or costs, 
including but not limited to withholding the full amount of any change order necessitated by an 
error or omission in the Contract Documents.  (“Contract Documents” means all documents that 
are incorporated into the construction agreement between the City and the Design-Build Entity 
for the Project, including plans and specifications.)  (“Design-Build Entity” shall mean the prime 
contractor.) 

 
F.   Construction Manager may separately invoice, on an hourly basis, for 

services that it performs at City’s written direction that are outside the scope of this Agreement 
(“Additional Services”).  Prior to performing these services, Construction Manager must provide 
City with written notice that the requested services are Additional Services.  Additional services 
are also subject to the dispute procedures in Section 2.C., above.  Construction Manager shall not 
be compensated for any Additional Services required as a result of Construction Manager’s 
wrongful acts or omissions in breach of this Agreement, the applicable standard of care, or the 
law.   

 
G.  City has the right to audit Construction Manager’s records regarding any 

of the services Construction Manager performs for City on this Project. 
 

66



 3 
 

 3. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF CONSTRUCTION MANAGER. 
 
  A.  General Duties and Responsibilities. 
 
   1.  Construction Manager will administer all phases of construction 
activities to achieve the completion of the construction contract and the Project in accordance 
with the requirements of this Agreement and in accordance with the reasonable care of a 
professional construction manager in the circumstances of this Project.  All services Construction 
Manager performs under this Agreement shall be conducted in a manner consistent with the 
terms of this Agreement and with the level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by construction 
managers, on similar projects in California with similar complexity and with similar agreements, 
who are specially qualified to provide the services the City requires.  Construction Manager shall 
conduct all such services in conformance to, and compliance with, all applicable Federal, State 
and local laws, including but not limited to statutes, decisions, regulations, building or other 
codes, ordinances, charters, the Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”), the California Public 
Contract Code, the California Civil Code, and the California Government Code.   Construction 
Manager shall provide other reasonable and necessary services that assist City in maintaining the 
City’s budget and schedule.  Construction Manager shall perform the services set forth in this 
Agreement as expeditiously as is consistent with the orderly progress of the Project, the 
applicable standard of care, the timelines of this Project and Agreement, and all applicable law. 
 

2.  Staffing.  Construction Manager shall provide sufficient staffing to 
timely perform its duties and responsibilities under this Agreement, including coordination of the 
work to optimize efficiency and minimize conflict and interference between Design-Build Entity 
and, if applicable, Owner’s own forces or any separate contractors also on-site.  Construction 
Manager shall provide Barry Winningham to manage the Project along with sufficient employees 
before construction commences to perform Construction Manager’s duties and responsibilities 
under this Agreement.  All of Construction Manager’s personnel shall be qualified to perform the 
services they provide for the Project.  Construction Manager shall obtain City’s written approval 
of each employee of Construction Manager who provides services under this Agreement, and 
written approval for each change of employees who provides such services.  City may, upon 
fifteen (15) days written notice, cause Construction Manager to remove a person from the Project 
if he/she has failed to perform to City’s satisfaction.  Construction Manager shall provide a full-
time Project manager during the construction phase with authority to commit resources of 
Construction Manager to monitor, manage and administer all aspects of this Agreement to help 
achieve the completion of all construction.  Should additional employees be required to timely 
and fully perform all of the services required under this Agreement and/or to avoid delay 
occurring, Construction Manager shall provide them immediately.   
 
   3.   Disclosure.  Construction Manager shall disclose to City all of 
Construction Manager’s subconsultants that are performing services related to the Project.  
Construction Manager shall also disclose to City any compensation related to the Project that 
Construction Manager receives from parties other than the City so that City may determine if 
there are any conflicts of interest. 
 

67



 4 
 

4. Additional Services.  If City directs Construction Manager to 
perform services related to the Project that are not within the scope of this Agreement, 
Construction Manager shall perform them and invoice the City for such services pursuant to 
Section 2.F.   
 

5.  Obligation to Perform.  The Construction Manager shall provide 
all construction management duties and functions as specifically directed by the City, even if not 
specifically identified in this Agreement.  The Construction Manager shall perform all tasks as 
directed by the City to complete the Project and Construction Manager’s services.  The 
Construction Manager may not cease performance of its services under this Agreement for any 
reason, including disputes with the City or an alleged breach of contract by the City.  The 
Construction Manager acknowledges that its priority is to ensure completion of the Project on 
time and on, or under, the City’s budget.  If the Construction Manager believes that the City 
owes it additional compensation under this Agreement, the Construction Manager may submit a 
request for additional compensation, but the Construction Manager may not cease or reduce 
performance of its services for that reason.   

 
  B. Preconstruction, Design Review, and Bidding Phase. 
 
 The services to be provided during the Preconstruction, Design Review and Bidding 
Phases for the Project generally include, but are not limited to:  review and recommendations 
during design development; preparation of conceptual and periodic estimates; budget assessment 
and cost containment advice; value engineering studies and recommendations; and Construction 
Manager reviews, including reviews. 
 
   1. Construction Management Plan.  The Construction Manager shall 
prepare a construction management plan for the Project.  The construction management plan 
shall (1) provide a preliminary evaluation of the City's schedule, cost and design requirements 
for the Project; (2) develop an anticipated construction schedule; (3) develop a preliminary cost 
estimate for each type of work contemplated by the Project; (4) clarify and delineate the Design-
Build Entity’s responsibilities, the City’s responsibilities, the Construction Manager’s 
responsibilities; and (5) set forth a plan for the administration of all work on the Project.  The 
plan shall provide for City review and acceptance.   
 
   2. Preliminary Schedule.  The Construction Manager shall prepare a 
preliminary critical path schedule for the Project using software showing construction activities, 
procurement and submittal activities, any other critical path activities, and sequencing and 
duration of the Design-Build Entity’s work on the Project.  The preliminary schedule shall 
specify the proposed starting and finishing dates for the contract and the dates by which certain 
construction activities and milestones must be complete.  The Construction Manager shall submit 
the preliminary schedule to the City for review and approval.  The preliminary schedule will be 
included in the bid package and will be the initial basis for the schedule during construction.   
 
   3. Project Construction Cost and City’s Budget.  The Construction 
Manager shall assist the City in preparing the initial and revised Project Construction Cost, 
which shall be estimates of the total construction costs to be paid by the City to the Design-Build 

68



 5 
 

Entity.  All Project Construction Costs shall include a contingency for additional construction 
costs that may arise through higher bids than expected, future increases in construction costs, and 
change orders.  The Project Construction Cost shall also provide cost breakdowns based on 
anticipated trades and/or subcontractors.  During the Design-Build Entity’s design phases, the 
Construction Manager shall assist Design-Build Entity in ensuring that the Project Construction 
Cost remains equal to, or less than, the City’s budget.  The Construction Manager shall consult 
with the City to suggest reasonable adjustments in the Project scope, if any, and to suggest 
possible add/delete bid alternatives in the Contract Documents, to adjust the Project Construction 
Cost to conform to the City’s budget.   
 
   4. Bid Package.  The Construction Manager shall, with assistance 
from the Design-Build Entity, prepare the bid package and ensure that all Project requirements 
(including general conditions) are included in the Guaranteed Maximum Price (“GMP”).  
Construction Manager will be responsible for assembly of the bid package and preparation of all 
cover information to assure that all items listed on the cover are included in the bid documents. 
 
   5. Pre-Bid Conferences.  The Construction Manager shall, with the 
assistance of the Design-Build Entity and the City, disseminate the bid package and conduct pre-
bid conferences to familiarize bidders with the bid documents and management techniques.  The 
Construction Manager shall also assist the Design-Build Entity with responding to questions 
from prospective bidders, and with the issuance of addenda.  If requested by the City, the 
Construction Manager shall assist the City in pre-qualifying bidders.   
 
   6. Project Meetings.  The Construction Manager shall conduct Project 
meetings as needed, but on at least a weekly basis.  The City may request more frequent 
meetings.  The City, Design-Build Entity and others shall attend these meetings.  The meetings 
shall serve as a forum for the exchange of information concerning the Project and the review of 
design progress.  The Construction Manager shall prepare and distribute minutes of these 
meetings to the City, Design-Build Entity, and others in attendance. 
 
   7. Review of Contract Documents.  The Construction Manager shall 
thoroughly and adequately review the Design-Build Entity’s proposed Contract Documents and 
make detailed written recommendations to the City and the Design-Build Entity regarding: 
constructability; likelihood of resulting in accurate and complete bids; and general completeness, 
clarity, consistency, coordination, and cost-effectiveness.  Construction Manager shall also make 
recommendations regarding value engineering, possible add/delete bid alternatives, timelines for 
construction and scheduling.  Construction Manager shall provide all of the above 
recommendations to the City and the Design-Build Entity in writing or as notations on the 
proposed Contract Documents and Contract Documents.  The constructability review shall also 
ascertain whether the Design-Build Entity can construct the Project as depicted in the proposed 
Contract Documents, and can do so without delays, disruptions, or additional costs.  The 
constructability review shall include written confirmation that: (a) the Construction Manager’s 
senior estimator has directly and thoroughly reviewed and approved all proposed Contract 
Documents.  Construction Manager shall provide City with evidence of that review; (b) proposed 
Contract Documents requirements are consistent with, and conform to, the City’s Project 
requirements; and (c) the various components of the proposed Contract Documents prepared by 

69



 6 
 

Design-Build Entity and its design consultants are coordinated and consistent with each other so 
as to minimize conflicts within, or between, the components.  In performing the reviews and 
making the recommendations, the Construction Manager shall not be assuming responsibility or 
liability, in whole or in part, for any aspect of the Project design, design requirements, design 
criteria or the substance or contents of the proposed Contract Documents.  The Construction 
Manager may use building information modeling technology during the constructability review 
if City and Construction Manager believe it is advisable for the Project.   
 

The City shall have the sole and exclusive discretion to accept some, all, 
or none of the constructability review comments.  If the City accepts any of the constructability 
review comments and directs Design-Build Entity to revise the design accordingly, then 
Construction Manager shall review the Design-Build Entity’s revised proposed Contract 
Documents to confirm that the accepted comments have been addressed in the proposed Contract 
Documents.   

 
The Construction Manager shall review the Storm Water Pollution 

Prevention Plan, if any, and provide written recommendations to the City and Design-Build 
Entity as to its adequacy.   
 
   8. Project Funding.  The Construction Manager shall assist the City in 
preparing documents concerning the City’s budget for use in obtaining or reporting on Project 
funding.  The documents shall be prepared in a format approved by the City.  The Construction 
Manager shall make recommendations to the City concerning revisions to the Project and Project 
Construction Cost that may result from design changes. 
 
   9. Schedule Reports.  The Construction Manager shall prepare and 
distribute biweekly reports that compare actual progress with scheduled progress for the design 
phases of the Project. 
 
   10. Project Cost Reports.   The Construction Manager shall prepare 
and distribute Project cost reports that shall indicate actual or estimated costs compared to the 
City’s budget. 
 
   11. Subcontractor Bidding, Bid Opening, and Evaluation.   
 

11.1   The Construction Manager shall develop and expedite 
bidding procedures for bid document issuance, bid tracking, and receipt of bids in coordination 
with the Design-Build Entity.  The Construction Manager shall develop bidders’ interest in the 
Project and shall maintain contact with potential bidders on a regular basis throughout the bid 
period.  Construction Manager shall conduct a telephone campaign to encourage and maintain 
interest in bidding.   

 
11.2  All construction work, including “general conditions” 

work, for the Project shall be competitively bid unless otherwise required by the City.   
 
 

70



 7 
 

11.3 The Construction Manager shall coordinate the preparation 
and placement of the notices and advertisements to solicit bids as required by law and in 
cooperation with the City and Design-Build Entity. 
 

11.4 The Construction Manager shall include the following 
requirements in all proposed bid package documents:  performance and payment bonds at 100% 
of the contract amount; all bond sureties must be admitted California surety insurers; and 
insurance in amounts and coverage as directed by the City.   

 
11.5 The Construction Manager shall open and evaluate all bids 

received by the Design-Build Entity and make a recommendation to the City for award of the 
contract.  Construction Manager shall assist the City in determining bidders’ responsibility, by 
among other things, analyzing any questionnaires, interviewing, investigating and researching, 
and shall submit a written report to the City and Design-Build Entity with information and 
recommendations.  Construction Manager shall also submit a bid package summary that lists the 
name of the low bidder and the low bid amount for each trade.   

 
11.6 If the City authorizes re-bidding, the Construction Manager 

shall assist the Design-Build Entity in revising the scope and the quality of work as may be 
required to reduce construction costs.  The Construction Manager, without additional 
compensation, shall cooperate with the City and Design-Build Entity as necessary to bring 
construction costs within the City’s budget. 

 
11.7  Construction Manager shall certify in writing that all of the 

work in the plans and specifications for the Project is included in the bid package.  If the bid 
package does not include 100% of the work in the plans and specifications, the cost of the 
additional necessary work shall offset the Construction Manager’s fees. 

 
11.8 The Construction Manager shall not be a bidder or perform 

work for the successful bidder. 
 
   12. Proposal Evaluation and Solicitation.  For work which need not be 
competitively bid, the Construction Manager shall solicit requests for proposals, evaluate all 
proposals received, and make recommendations to the City regarding the Design-Build Entity to 
be selected for such work. 
 
   13. Pre-Construction Conferences.  With the Design-Build Entity’s 
assistance, the Construction Manager shall conduct pre-construction conferences with the 
successful bidder, which shall include providing the Design-Build Entity to the various reporting 
procedures and site rules prior to the commencement of actual construction.  The Construction 
Manager shall obtain the certificates of insurance and bonds from the Design-Build Entity 
review and, if acceptable, approve them, and then forward them to the City. 
 
   14. Equipment Procurement.  The Construction Manager shall 
recommend a schedule for the City’s purchase, procurement and/or rental of owner-furnished 
materials and equipment required for the Project.  

71



 8 
 

   15. Communications.  The Construction Manager shall develop a 
communication system to ensure clear communication between the City, the Construction 
Manager, the Design-Build Entity, and other parties involved with the Project.  In developing 
this communication system, the Construction Manager shall meet with the City, the Design-
Build Entity and others to determine the type of information to be reported, the reporting format 
and the desired frequency for distribution of the various reports. 
 
  C. Construction Phase. 
 
   1. Construction and Contract Administration.  The Construction 
Manager shall provide administrative, management, and related services as required to 
coordinate work of the Design-Build Entity with the activities and responsibilities of the 
Construction Manager, the City, and the Design-Build Entity to complete the Project in 
accordance with the Contract Documents and this Agreement, within the City’s budget, as well 
as within the City’s cost, time, and quality objectives.  As the City’s representative on the 
construction site, the Construction Manager shall be the party to whom the Design-Build Entity 
submits all documents and information, including requests for information, submittals, shop 
drawings and proposed change orders.  Construction Manager shall be responsible for 
administration of the Contract as set forth herein, and for managing the Design-Build Entity and 
its work to optimize efficiency and minimize conflict and interference between Design-Build 
Entity and, if applicable, City’s own forces and separate contractors on-site.  (“Contract” means 
a contract between the City and the Design-Build Entity for the Project, as reflected in the 
Contract Documents.)  Construction Manager shall prepare and provide written monthly progress 
reports, including information on progress, problems, potential solutions, schedules, and fiscal 
conditions.  Construction Manager shall meet with City on an as-needed basis and at the City’s 
request.   
 
   2. Project Site Meetings.  The Construction Manager shall schedule 
and conduct preconstruction, construction and progress meetings to discuss all matters relevant 
to construction of the Project, including but not limited to procedures, progress, inspections, 
necessary corrective work, problems, requests for information, proposed change orders, and 
scheduling.  During construction, the meetings shall occur at least weekly.  The Construction 
Manager shall prepare and distribute detailed minutes to all attendees, the City and the Design-
Build Entity. 
 
   3.   Budget Management and Cost Control.  If the GMP exceeds the 
Project Construction Cost, the City may consent to increasing the Project Construction Cost 
and/or the City’s budget, or may authorize negotiations (if permissible), direct re-bidding of the 
bid package, or abandon the bid package or the Project, and Construction Manager shall assist in 
these activities.  The Construction Manager shall prepare and distribute monthly Project cost 
reports that shall indicate actual or estimated costs compared to the Project Construction Cost 
and the City’s budget, including a summary of the progress payments and the amounts of 
potential, proposed and actual change orders.  The Construction Manager shall revise and refine 
the Project Construction Cost, incorporating changes as they occur and identifying variances 
between actual and budgeted or estimated costs.  Construction Manager shall also make 

72



 9 
 

recommendations for eliminating future costs so the predicted Project Construction Cost to be 
incurred will be within the City’s budget. 
 

  4. Schedule.  The Construction Manager shall ensure that the bid 
package requires the Design-Build Entity to submit to Construction Manager a detailed critical 
path schedule before the Design-Build Entity’s commencement of work on the Project site or 
within one (1) week of award of the Contract, whichever is earlier.   

 
During construction, the Construction Manager shall collect monthly 

updated schedules from the Design-Build Entity as required under the Contract Documents.  
Construction Manager shall review the original and updated schedules for the Design-Build 
Entity’s compliance with the scheduling requirements in the Contract Documents, and shall then, 
within two weeks of receiving the schedule from the Design-Build Entity, provide the schedule 
and comments regarding such compliance to the City. 

 
If the Design-Build Entity does not submit original or updated schedules 

as required under the Contract Documents, then the Construction Manager shall promptly inform 
the Design-Build Entity and demand the schedule. 
 

If the Design-Build Entity’s work does not progress according to the 
schedule or does not progress in a manner that will allow the Design-Build Entity to meet the 
completion deadline in the Contract Documents, then Construction Manager shall immediately 
demand a recovery plan from the Design-Build Entity as required in the Contract Documents.  
Upon receipt, Construction Manager shall distribute the recovery plan, with the Construction 
Manager’s recommendations in writing, to the City for its consideration. 

 
   5. Trivial Variations in the Work.  The Construction Manager may 
authorize trivial variations in the work from the requirements of the Contract Documents that (a) 
do not involve an adjustment in the Contract price or the Contract time, and (b) are consistent 
with the overall intent of the Contract Documents.  The Construction Manager shall immediately 
provide to the City copies of such authorizations. 
 

6. Quality Review and Inspections.  The Construction Manager shall 
establish and implement a comprehensive program to monitor the quality of the construction, as 
part of the Construction Manager’s supervision of the Design-Build Entity and its work.  The 
purpose of the program shall be to assist in guarding the City against work by a Design-Build 
Entity that does not conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents.  The Construction 
Manager shall supervise the Inspector of Record to ensure that he/she is performing all necessary 
inspections, and shall incorporate the results of the Inspector of Record’s inspections into the 
Construction Manager’s inspection and quality program.  

 
When it is the opinion of the Construction Manager, Inspector of Record, 

or the City, that the Design-Build Entity’s means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures 
of construction will likely lead to a portion of the Design-Build Entity’s work not conforming to 
the Contract Documents, then the Construction Manager shall immediately so notify the Design-
Build Entity in writing.  The notice shall also state that the City will reserve all rights to demand 

73



 10 
 

correction of any resulting non-conforming work or to pursue other relief; however, the notice 
shall not direct Design-Build Entity as to what means, methods, techniques, sequences or 
procedures Design-Build Entity should use to meet the requirements of the Contract Documents, 
nor shall Construction Manager ever provide such direction to the Design-Build Entity during 
the Project.  Except for trivial variations in the work from the requirements of the Contract 
Documents that do not involve an adjustment in the Contract price or the Contract time and 
which are consistent with the overall intent of the Contract Documents, the Construction 
Manager is not authorized to, and shall not, change, revoke, alter, enlarge, relax or release any 
requirements of the Contract Documents or approve or accept any portion of the work not 
conforming to the requirements of the Contract Documents.  Communication between the 
Construction Manager and the Design-Build Entity with regard to quality review shall not in any 
way be construed as binding the Construction Manager, or the City to the Design-Build Entity, 
or be construed as releasing the Design-Build Entity from performing the work in accordance 
with the Contract Documents.  The Construction Manager will not be responsible for the means, 
methods, techniques, sequences and procedures of construction a Design-Build Entity uses for 
the Project unless, contrary to the terms of this Agreement, it directs the Design-Build Entity to 
use certain means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures to meet the requirements of the 
Contract Documents.  The Construction Manager shall use all available means and undertake 
good-faith efforts to secure the performance of the Design-Build Entity in accordance with the 
Contract Documents. 
 

7. Construction Oversight Process. The Construction Manager has the 
primary responsibility for the Project to supervise, coordinate and manage the compliance of all 
parties, including the City’s Inspector of Record/Project Inspector (“IOR”), Design-Build Entity, 
laboratories, City and the Construction Manager itself.  
 

8. Change Orders and Claims.  The Construction Manager shall 
recommend necessary or desirable changes to the City, review proposed change orders, assist in 
negotiating Design-Build Entity’s proposed change orders, submit recommendations to the City 
regarding the proposed change orders, and, if they are accepted, prepare change orders for the 
City’s review and with the understanding that the City’s governing body must approve all change 
orders.  The Construction Manager shall review the contents of all proposed change orders from 
the Design-Build Entity regarding the Contract time or price, endeavor to determine the cause of 
the proposed change order, assemble information concerning the proposed change order, and 
evaluate the merits of the proposed change order.  The Construction Manager shall ensure that all 
supporting documentation is submitted with any proposed change order, and shall request 
additional supporting documentation if necessary.  The Construction Manager shall provide to 
the City a copy of each proposed change order.  The Construction Manager shall make a final 
written recommendation to City regarding each proposed change order and shall conduct 
negotiations with the Design-Build Entity if necessary.  No change orders will be paid by City 
without prior approval of the City.  The Construction Manager shall prepare and distribute 
change order reports on a weekly basis for the City.  The report shall list all City-approved 
change orders by number, a brief description of the change order work, the cost, and percent of 
completion of the change order work.  The report shall also include similar information for 
proposed change orders and potential change orders of which the Construction Manager may be 
aware. To the extent that the Design-Build Entity performs work that is the subject of a proposed 

74



 11 
 

change order, the Construction Manager shall monitor the work and include in the daily report all 
information necessary to calculate the Design-Build Entity’s costs in performing the work.   
 

If the Design-Build Entity submits a claim to the City under its Contract, 
including one based on the denial of a proposed change order, the Construction Manager shall 
process and evaluate the claim, and make reasonable efforts to resolve the claim, under the 
procedures outlined in the Contract Documents.   
 
   9. Progress Payments and Retention Release.  Progress payments 
shall be made as required by the Contract Documents and by law (including but not limited to 
Public Contract Code section 20104.50), and the Construction Manager shall process all such 
payments and notify the City when payments are required.  The Construction Manager shall 
develop and implement procedures for the review and processing of monthly applications by 
Design-Build Entity for progress payments and final payments.  At or before submission of the 
Design-Build Entity’s first progress payment application, the Construction Manager shall collect 
from the Design-Build Entity a reasonable schedule of values that accurately allocates the 
Contract price to the Contract work items.  The Construction Manager shall receive, review, 
revise and give initial approval to the progress payment applications.  After Construction 
Manager gives initial approval to the progress payment applications, it shall distribute them to 
the City, for approval.  The applications shall state the total Contract price, total payment to date, 
total retention to date, current payment requested based on percentages of work items completed 
to date (per the schedule of values), revised total payment, and revised retention.   A portion of 
this application shall be a recommendation for payment that the Construction Manager shall sign, 
and deliver to, the City for the City’s use in making payments to the Design-Build Entity.   
 

Retention shall be released as required by the Contract Documents and by 
law (including but not limited to Public Contract Code section 7107), and the Construction 
Manager shall process the release and notify City of when such release is required.   

 
The Construction Manager shall monitor the City’s grounds for 

withholding some or all of the progress payments and/or retention release from the Design-Build 
Entity (including past and future liquidated damages, and cost of corrective work), and shall 
advise the City of such grounds before any progress payment or retention release.  The 
Construction Manager shall withhold from progress payments and/or retention release for all 
such grounds unless the City instructs the Construction Manager to not withhold.  The 
Construction Manager shall not waive any rights, claims or damages that the City may have 
against the Design-Build Entity without written authority from the City to do so.  The 
Construction Manager shall take all action necessary to protect, document and preserve the 
City’s rights, claims and damages against the Design-Build Entity, including but not limited to 
notification of the accrual or assessment of liquidated damages.   

 
The Construction Manager, in conjunction with the City, shall establish 

and administer an appropriate Project accounting system and shall maintain cost accounting 
records on authorized work performed under unit costs, additional work performed on the basis 
of actual costs of labor and materials, or other work requiring accounting records.  Construction 
Manager shall provide monthly accounting updates.   

75



 12 
 

 
   10. Design-Build Entity Safety Programs.  The Construction Manager 
shall review the safety programs the Design-Build Entity develops under the Contract 
Documents and shall coordinate all safety programs for the Project. 
 
   11. Permits and Approvals.  The Construction Manager shall assist the 
City in obtaining approval and permits from all authorities having jurisdiction over the Project.  
The Construction Manager shall also verify that all required permits, bonds, and insurance have 
been obtained from the Design-Build Entity.   
 
   12. Coordination of Technical Inspection and Testing.  The 
Construction Manager shall assist the City in selecting and retaining the professional services of 
special consultants and testing laboratories and coordinate their services.  The Construction 
Manager shall receive a copy of all inspection and testing reports and shall provide a copy of 
such reports to the City.  The Construction Manager shall coordinate with the City’s testing 
consultants all testing required by the City or third parties. 
 
   13. Interpretation of Contract Documents.  The Construction Manager 
shall consult with the City if the Design-Build Entity submits a request for information or other 
requests for interpretation of the meaning or intent of the Contract Documents (“RFI”), and shall 
assist in the resolution of questions which may arise.  Within two (2) business days of receipt of 
an RFI, the Construction Manager shall either:  1) forward the RFI to the City; or 2) for an RFI 
not related to the plans and specifications, review or reject it.  However, if the issue in the RFI is 
directly impacting the critical path at that time, the Construction Manager shall forward, review 
or reject the RFI immediately upon receipt.   
 
   14. Document and Submittal Review Procedures.  The Construction 
Manager shall review all shop drawings, schedule updates, product data, samples, and other 
submittals provided by the Design-Build Entity and coordinate submittals with the information 
contained in the plans and specifications.   
 
   15. Daily Log.  The Construction Manager shall record the progress of 
the Project by a daily log.  The Construction Manager shall submit written reports to the City on 
a regular basis, as established by the City.  The daily log will include, but not be limited to, 
information about the weather, Design-Build Entity and subcontractors at work and their 
equipment and staffing, work accomplished, problems encountered, rejection of material or 
work, the current critical path of the Project, issues that are known to be in dispute and/or may be 
the subject of proposed change orders or claims, and other similar relevant data as the City may 
require.  Construction Manager shall document the Project by use of video, photographs, and 
audio, with particular attention to known disputes and/or issues that could lead to proposed 
change orders or claims. 
 
   16. Project Site Records.  The Construction Manager shall maintain at 
the Project site, on a current basis the following documents:  A record copy of the Contract, 
drawings, specifications, addenda, change orders, and other modifications, in good order and 
marked to record all changes made during construction; pre-construction activities documents, 

76



 13 
 

including but not limited to constructability review documents (see Section 2.B., above); shop 
drawings, product data, samples, and submittals; records regarding purchases, materials and 
equipment; applicable handbooks, schedules, schedule updates and daily logs; records regarding 
progress payments, retention, proposed change orders, claims and change orders; maintenance 
and operating manuals and instructions; and other related documents and revisions which arise 
out of the Contract or work.  The Construction Manager shall make all records available to the 
City and deliver them to the City at Project completion or termination of this Agreement. 
 
   17. Security.  The Construction Manager shall arrange for storage, 
protection, and security of City-furnished materials, systems, and equipment until such items are 
incorporated into the Project.  Upon City’s request, Construction Manager shall comply with any 
fingerprinting or related requirement. 
 
   18. Start-Up Operations.  The Construction Manager shall review the 
Design-Build Entity’s checkout of the readiness of utilities, operational systems, and equipment 
and shall assist the Design-Build Entity in its initial start-up, testing, balancing, adjusting, 
training of City employees and preparation of operations and maintenance manuals.  The 
Construction Manager shall coordinate and assist the City in the move-in for the Project. 
 
   19. Punchlist.  Upon notice from the Design-Build Entity that the 
Design-Build Entity believes its work is complete, the Construction Manager shall prepare a list 
of incomplete work or work which must be corrected due to failure to conform to the 
requirements of the Contract Documents (the “Punchlist”).  The Construction Manager shall 
diligently pursue the Design-Build Entity to complete its Punchlist work as quickly as possible, 
using all available City powers and rights under the Contract Documents.  If the Design-Build 
Entity’s Punchlist is not completed within forty-five (45) days of issuance, the Construction 
Manager shall provide a written recommendation to the City as to how to best proceed to secure 
completion of the Punchlist as quickly as possible. 
 
   20. Final Completion and Final Payment.  The Construction Manager 
shall consult with the City and shall determine when the Design-Build Entity’s work is fully 
complete as required by the Contract Documents.  When the Design-Build Entity’s work is 
complete, the Construction Manager shall notify the City in writing and shall recommend that 
the City accept the Contract work as fully complete.  The Construction Manager shall draft the 
resolution of acceptance for the City Council to approve, and shall also, if required for the 
Project or if City requests it, draft a Notice of Completion to be recorded with the County within 
fifteen (15) days after the Council’s acceptance.  The Construction Manager shall continue to 
process progress payment applications, releases of retention, proposed change orders and claims 
as required by the Contract Documents and the law beyond the completion and acceptance of the 
work. 
 
   21. Final Documents.  During the Project, the Construction Manager 
shall secure from the Design-Build Entity and transmit to the City all documents and items 
required by the Contract Documents, including guarantees, affidavits, releases, bonds, keys, 
schedule updates, manuals, record drawings, and daily logs.  Upon completion of the Project, the 
Construction Manager shall also forward all of its documents and plans to the City and ensure all 

77



 14 
 

such plans and documents are well organized for any appropriate audit or review of the Project.  
The Construction Manager shall collect as-built drawings from the Design-Build Entity and 
review them for accuracy and completeness.   
 
   22. Warranty Inspections.  The Construction Manager shall perform 
warranty inspections 30 to 60 days prior to expiration of each warranty period applicable to the 
Design-Build Entity’s work, and shall arrange for, and monitor, Design-Build Entity’s work on 
site and inspect any resulting warranty work by the Design-Build Entity.  Immediately after a 
warranty inspection, the Construction Manager shall notify the Design-Build Entity in writing of 
all warranty items that require correction.   
 
 4. CITY DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES.  During the term of this 
Agreement, the City shall: 
 
  A. Provide a budget for the Project (“City’s budget”), based on consultation 
with the Construction Manager; 
 
  B. Designate a representative authorized to act on the City’s behalf with 
respect to the Project.  The City, or such authorized representative, shall examine documents 
submitted by the Construction Manager and shall render decisions promptly to avoid 
unreasonable delay in the progress of the Project; 
 
  C. Furnish structural, mechanical, electrical, and other laboratory tests, 
inspections and reports as required by law or by the Contract Documents; 
 
  D.  Furnish a list of events for inclusion in the schedule(s) that may affect 
construction; and  
 
  E.  Advise promptly of any fault or defect in the Project, or nonconformance 
with the Contract Documents, that the City observes. 

78



 15 
 

 5. TERMINATION. 
 
  A. City may terminate this Agreement for any reason, in its absolute 
discretion and convenience, by giving Construction Manager fourteen (14) days written notice of 
termination.  City may also issue a written notice of termination of this Agreement for cause 
based on the Construction Manager’s breach of this Agreement if (i) City mails and faxes to 
Construction Manager a written notice of intent to terminate with explanation of the breaches 
and the cure necessary, and (ii) Construction Manager does not cure, or offer a reasonable plan to 
cure, the default within five (5) calendar days of issuance of the written notice of intent to 
terminate. 
 
  B. In the event of termination by City, the Construction Manager shall be 
compensated pursuant to Section 2, above, for all services satisfactorily performed through the 
termination date. 
 
 6. HOLD HARMLESS/INDEMNIFICATION.  Construction Manager shall 
indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City, its City Council, officers, agents, and employees 
from any and all claims, damages, losses, liability, causes of action and demands, including 
reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, incurred in connection with or in any manner arising out of 
Construction Manager’s performance of, or failure to perform, any duties under this Agreement 
or the law, including but not limited to breaches of the applicable standard of care. 
 
 7. STATUS OF CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AND RELATIONSHIP TO 
CITY.  The Construction Manager shall be City’s principal agent in providing the construction 
management services described in this Agreement.  In providing the construction management 
services contemplated by this Agreement, the Construction Manager shall, on behalf of the City, 
maintain a professional working relationship with the City, the Design-Build Entity, and all 
others.  The Construction Manager’s primary obligation of loyalty is to the City, not the Design-
Build Entity, a subconsultant, or another party.  When performing its duties and responsibilities 
on the Project, the Construction Manager must act and make recommendations in accordance 
with the City’s best interests, and not the Construction Manager’s, the Design-Build Entity’s, or 
another party’s best interests.  This duty of loyalty to the City requires the Construction Manager 
to, among other things, notify the City of any potential deficiencies in Design-Build Entity’s 
design of the Project or potential breaches by the Design-Build Entity of its obligations to the 
City under law (including the standard of care) or the agreement between the City and Design-
Build Entity.  This duty of loyalty to City also requires the Construction Manager to, among 
other things, notify City of any potential deficiencies in the Design-Build Entity’s work or 
potential breaches by the Design-Build Entity of its obligations to the City under law or under 
the agreement between the City and the Design-Build Entity. 
 

As Construction Manager, the Construction Manager is not an employee of the City.  
Construction Manager is understood to be an independent contractor.  Nothing in this Agreement 
shall preclude Construction Manager from performing similar services for other persons or 
entities. 
 

79



 16 
 

 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to create any contractual 
relationship between the Construction Manager and the Design-Build Entity, or a material 
supplier for the Project, nor shall anything contained in this Agreement be deemed to give any 
third party any claim or right of action against the City, or the Construction Manager which does 
not otherwise exist. 
 
 8. INSURANCE.  The Construction Manager shall purchase and maintain insurance 
that will protect the Construction Manager from the claims set forth below that may arise out of 
or result from the Construction Manager’s performance of services or failure to perform services 
required by this Agreement: 
 
  A. Claims under Workers’ Compensation, disability benefits and other 
similar employee benefits acts that are applicable to the work performed; 
 
  B. Claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or 
disease or death of Construction Manager's employees, agents or invitees; 
 
  C. Claims for damages because of bodily injury or death of any person; 
 
  D. Claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability coverage 
that are sustained (1) by any person as a result of an offense directly related to the employment 
of such person by the Construction Manager or (2) by any other person; 
 
  E. Claims for damages, other than to the work itself, because of injury to or 
destruction of tangible property, including loss of use therefrom; or 
 
  F. Claims for damages because of bodily injury or death of any person or 
property damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use of any motor vehicle. 
 
The Construction Manager’s comprehensive general and automobile liability insurance shall be 
written for not less than the following limits of liability: 
 
Comprehensive General Liability 
 
Personal Injury:     Property Damage: 
 
$1 Million Each Occurrence    $1 Million Each Occurrence 
 
$2 Million Aggregate     $2 Million Aggregate 
 
Comprehensive Automobile Liability 
 
Bodily Injury:      Property Damage: 
 
$1 Million Each Person    $1 Million Each Occurrence 
 

80



 17 
 

$2 Million Each Occurrence 
 
Each policy of insurance above shall operate as primary insurance.  The City, its Council, 
employees and agents shall be named as additional insureds under the policies.  A copy of the 
policies shall be provided before any work is commenced under this Agreement.  Policies shall 
not be canceled or reduced in coverage without 30 days prior written notice to City.   
 
 9. LICENSING REQUIREMENTS AND QUALIFICATIONS.   Construction 
Manager represents and warrants that Construction Manager possesses the appropriate 
qualifications and licenses required by all applicable provisions of law, including Government 
Code sections 4525, et seq.; that Construction Manager is competent and qualified to perform the 
services required by this Agreement; that Construction Manager has substantial expertise and 
experience in all aspects of construction management for projects of this type, including but not 
limited to construction supervision, bid evaluation, cost benefit analysis, claims review and 
negotiation, general management and administration of construction projects, furthering of City’s 
interests in the management and construction of the Project; and that Construction Manager shall 
perform in an expeditious and economical manner consistent with the interests of the City. 
 
 10. PAYROLL AND WORKER'S COMPENSATION RESPONSIBILITIES.  
Construction Manager will be liable and solely responsible for paying all required taxes and 
workers’ compensation and other obligations, including, but not limited to, federal and state 
income taxes and social security taxes.  Construction Manager agrees to indemnify, defend and 
hold the City harmless from any liability which Construction Manager may incur to the Federal 
or State governments as a consequence of this Agreement.  All payments to the Construction 
Manager shall be reported to the Internal Revenue Service. 
 
 11. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.  The City and the Construction Manager, 
respectively, bind themselves, their successors, assigns, and representatives to the other party to 
this Agreement, and to the partners, successors, assigns, and legal representatives of such other 
party with respect to all terms of this Agreement.  Neither City nor the Construction Manager 
shall assign or transfer any interest in this Agreement without the written consent of the other. 
 
 12. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision of this Agreement. 
 
 13. AMENDMENTS.  This Agreement cannot be changed or supplemented orally 
and may be modified or superseded only by written instrument executed by all parties. 
 
 14. EXECUTION BY FACSIMILE OR IN COUNTERPARTS; WARRANTY 
OF AUTHORITY.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that the signatures 
may appear on separate signature pages.  A copy, or an original, with all signatures appended 
together, shall be deemed a fully executed Agreement.  By execution of this Agreement, each 
person signing on behalf of an entity warrants that this Agreement is executed on behalf of a 
valid legal entity; that such entity possesses the full right and authority to undertake any action 
this Agreement contemplates; that the execution of this Agreement by the signatory for a Party 

81



 18 
 

has been duly and properly authorized by such entity on whose behalf said Agreement is 
executed, in accordance with all applicable laws, regulations, agreements and procedures 
governing the authority of such person to execute this Agreement on behalf of such entity; and 
that the consent of all persons or entities whatsoever necessary to the Parties due execution of 
this Agreement has been obtained.  This Agreement shall be binding on the Parties when all of 
the Parties have fully executed this Agreement (where each of the parties has signed at least one 
counterpart).  The Parties agree that the City will not have fully executed this Agreement until 
the City’s governing body has approved or ratified the Agreement and the designated City 
official has signed it. 
 
 15. INTERPRETATION.  The language of all parts of this Agreement shall, in all 
cases, be construed as a whole, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against either 
party. 
 
 16. NOTICES.  All payments and any notices or communications under this 
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to be duly given if served personally on the 
party to whom it is directed or shall be deemed served forty-eight (48) hours after the same has 
been deposited in the United States Mail, certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, or 
overnight mail, postage prepaid, and addressed in the case of: 
 

Construction Manager: Vanir Construction Management  
Name:    Steve Whitehead 
Title:    President   
Address:    4540 Duckhorn Dr., Suite 300 
    Sacramento, CA 95834 
 
 
City:    City of Lemoore 
Name:    Nathan Olson 
Title:    City Manager 
Address:   711 W. Cinnamon Drive  
    Lemoore, CA 93245 
 

 
 17. GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California, excluding its choice of law rules.  Any action 
or proceeding seeking any relief under, or with respect to, this Agreement shall be brought solely 
in the Superior Court of the State of California for the County in which the City maintains its 
City office, subject to transfer of venue under applicable State law, provided that nothing in this 
Agreement shall constitute a waiver of immunity to suit by the City. 
 
 18. WORK RECORDS.  All documents, daily logs, and any other written work 
product generated by Construction Manager shall be deemed to the sole and exclusive property 
of City. 
 

82



 19 
 

 19. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement 
between the parties and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either 
written or oral.  This Agreement may be amended only by written instruction signed by both the 
City and Construction Manager. 
 
 
CITY        CONSTRUCTION MANAGER 
 
 
By: __________________________    By:  _______________________ 
 Nathan Olson, City Manager     Andrew Freeman, COO 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

83



 20 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

84



 

 

  
 

 

January 30, 2019 
 
 
Mr. Nathan Olson, City Manager 
City of Lemoore 
711 W. Lemoore Avenue 
Lemoore, California 93245 

 
RE:      City of Lemoore – Water Treatment Plant Project 
 PM Scope & Fee Proposal for Construction Phase Services 

 
Dear Mr. Olson: 
 
In response to our discussion on January 28, 2019, Vanir CM respectfully offers the following scope of 
services and fee proposal to provide construction phase project management services on the Water 
Treatment Plant Project. 
 
Vanir’s experience as owner advocates in the design-build delivery method is extensive and 
covers all markets segments, including complex infrastructure developments across California 
and throughout the nation.  As a resident of Lemoore, not only do we have the right personnel 
with the right experience to serve the City, it is also a great privilege to be able to assist in this 
critical and unique project.   
 
Scope of Services 
 
The scope of services outlined below includes a list of tasks that Vanir will perform within the timeline 
provided.  This Proposal is based on Vanir starting in the DBE selection phase mid-February 2019 and a 
construction phase duration of approximately 12 months starting mid to late March 2019.  Vanir’s 
services for this effort will run up and until March 31, 2020.   
 
D/B Selection Phase Services (~ 1 month) 
 
Using our vast experience with water treatment projects and the design-build delivery method, 
Vanir will review and comment on the City’s Design-Build Entity (DBE) agreement.  Vanir will 
also join the City as part of the selection process and provide suggestions on the proposed DBE 
firms.  Vanir’s services in this area will be delivered pro bono. 
 
Construction Phase Services (~ 12 months) 
 
Vanir will provide project management services during the construction phase with Barry 
Winningham, Construction Manager, providing on-site construction management services, not-
to-exceed 20 hours per week.  Michelle Frey, PhD, Executive Director, will provide technical 

85



 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 2 of 3 
 
 
 
 

support services to the City, not-to-exceed 12 per month.  I will serve as the principal-in-charge 
and provide executive level oversight through the duration of the project.  Our services exclude 
weekend and holiday work. 
 
Scope of Services Timeline * 
 
Phase Start Date Completion Date 
D/B Selection Phase In Progress Mid to Late March 2019 
Construction Phase Mid to Late March 2019 March 31, 2020 
   
 

End of Scope & Schedule – Billing Rate & Fee Next Page 

86



 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 3 of 3 
 
 
 
 

BILLING RATE & FEE (~ 13 months total):  
 
Position Personnel Rate Hours Fee 
Principal-in-Charge Jerry Avalos, LEED AP $225/hour 48 $10,800 
Executive Director Michelle Frey, PhD $215/hour 160 $34,400  
Construction Manager  Barry Winningham $130/hour 912 $118,560 
Administrative Asst. Lizz Rutherford $60/hour 72 $4,320 
   Labor Sub-total $168,080 
Reimbursables    $2,500 

   Total $170,580 

Michelle Frey’s Services Credit <$34,400> 

 Grand Total $136,180 
 
 
Our services will be delivered and billed on a Time and Material, Not-to-Exceed basis.  
 
We look forward to a successful project and building a great and strong working relationship 
with the City of Lemoore and the project team. Thanks again for the opportunity and as always, 
please call with any questions. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
VANIR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT, INC. 

 
Jerry Avalos, CCM, EIT, LEED AP 
Vice President / Area Manager 
 
 
Cc:  Steve Whitehead, Chief Operating Officer, Vanir CM  
 Michelle Frey, Executive Director, Vanir CM 
 
 
Attachments: Resumes (3)  
  
  

87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



                                                                            
 
 
        

City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6700  Fax (559) 924-6708 

 
 

Staff Report 
 

                  
To: Lemoore City Council   

From: Janie Venegas, City Clerk / Human Resources Manager  

Date: March 13, 2019 Meeting Date: March 19, 2019 
Subject: Activity Update 

Strategic 
Initiative: 

☐ Safe & Vibrant Community 
☐ Fiscally Sound Government  
☐ Community & Neighborhood                                     
L   Livability 

☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy 
☐ Operational Excellence 
☒ Not Applicable  

 
Attendance Roster for Boards and Commissions 

 

 January through February 2019 

 
Reports 

 

 Warrant Register – FY 18/19 March 1, 2019 

 Warrant Register – FY 18/19 March 8, 2019 

 

 

 

101



EDDIE NEAL - Mayor Appointed to Boards/Commissions 1/15/19 YELLOW = ABSENT

Transportation Policy Committee 
(TPC)

Kings County Vehicle 
Abatement Committee (AVA)

Assumed Primary 2/5/19 January 23, 2019 January 23, 2019 January 30, 2019 January 10, 2019 +

February 2019 - No Meeting February 27, 2019 - No Meeting February 7, 2019 *

Kings County Association of Governments (KCAG)

Primary assumed by  Brown effective 2/5/19

Indian Gaming Local 
Community Benefit 

Committee
Kings Waste & Recycling JPA Board

Leauge of California Cities                   
* General Membership                  

+ Executive Board

102



CHAD BILLINGSLEY - Mayor Pro Tem Appointed to Boards/Commissions 1/15/19 YELLOW = ABSENT

Indian Gaming Local 
Community Benefit 

Committee

Kings County Economic 
Development Committee

Kings County Emergency 
Shelter and Food Committee

Kings Mosquito Abatement 
District

San Joaquin Valley Air Quality 
Control Board Special 
Seclection Committee

January 2019 - No Meeting January 2019 - No Meeting January 2019 - No Meeting Assumed Primary 2/5/19 January 2019 - No Meeting

Primary assumed by  Neal 
effective 2/5/19

February 25, 2019 February 2019 - No Meeting February 20, 2019 February 2019 - No Meeting

103



DAVE BROWN - Council Member Page 1 of 2      Appointed to Boards/Commissions 1/15/19 YELLOW = ABSENT

Kings Mosquito Abatement 
District

Transportation Policy Committee 
(TPC)

Kings County Vehicle Abatement 
Committee (AVA)

January 16, 2019

Janury 2019 - No Meeting Assumed Primary 2/5/19
Primary assumed by  Billingsley 

effective 2/5/19

February 2019 - No Meeting February 28, 2019 February 27, 2019 February 2019 - No Meeting

Assumed Primary effective 2/5/19

Kings County Association of Governments (KCAG)
Cross Valley Rail Corridor Joint 

Powers Authority
Kings County Area Public Transit 

Authority (KCAPTA)

104



DAVE BROWN - Council Member Page 2 of 2 YELLOW = ABSENT

Lemoore Finance Committee
LVFD Qualification Review 

Committee

South Fork Kings Sustainable 
Groundwater Management Act 

JPA Board

Janury 2019 - No Meeting Janury 2019 - No Meeting January 17, 2019

February 2019 - No Meeting February 2019 - No Meeting February 21, 2019

105



STUART LYONS - Council Member Appointed to Boards/Commissions 1/15/19 YELLOW = ABSENT

Board of Directors Meetings
Real Estate Committee 

Meetings
Marketing Committee Meetings

January 16, 2019 January 2019 - No Meeting January 2019 - No Meeting January 23, 2019 January 17, 2019 January 2019 - No Meeting

February 20, 2019 February 2019 - No Meeting February 2019 - No Meeting
Primary assumed by  Brown 

effective 2/5/19
February 21, 2019 February 2019 - No Meeting

Kings County Gang Awareness 
Advisory Committee

Kings County Community Action Organization (KCAO)
Kings County Area Public 

Transit Authority (KCAPTA)
Kings County Commission 

on Aging

106



PEI PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 03/11/2019 CITY OF LEMOORE AUDIT311
TIME: 09:20:49 GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: account.acct between '2000' and '2999'AND transact.batch='HB030119'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 090 - TRUST & AGENCY

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER DEBIT CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   8 /19 03/01/19  21 61230 T2644 ISIDRO VICTORIA 190.00  REIMBURSEMENT SUBPOEN
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE .00 190.00

2375 CIVIL SUBPOENA
   8 /19 03/01/19  21 61230 T2644 ISIDRO VICTORIA 190.00 REIMBURSEMENT SUBPOEN
TOTAL    CIVIL SUBPOENA 190.00 .00

TOTAL    TRUST & AGENCY 190.00 190.00

TOTAL REPORT 190.00 190.00

FY 18/19 Warrant Register 3-1-19

107



PEI PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 03/11/2019 CITY OF LEMOORE AUDIT11
TIME: 09:01:29 EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4211 - CITY COUNCIL

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR BUDGET EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310 PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /19 03/07/19 21 61265 5977 GREATAMERICA FIN 162.06 .00 COPIER/PRINTER
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC .00 162.06 .00

4320 MEETINGS & DUES
9 /19 03/07/19 21 61275 0288 LEAGUE OF CALIFO 75.00 .00 SSJVD MEETING 02/07
TOTAL    MEETINGS & DUES .00 75.00 .00

TOTAL    CITY COUNCIL .00 237.06 .00

RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:01:30 PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

FY 18/19 Warrant Register 3-8-19

108



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    2
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:01:29                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4213 - CITY MANAGER

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8572    -01 61253        6377 THE CRISCOM COMP              3,750.00         -3,750.00 CONTRACT SERVICES BILLED
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          3,750.00         -3,750.00

4320     MEETINGS & DUES
9 /19 03/07/19 21 C578    -01 61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                1,250.00         -1,340.63 BOOTH REGISTRATION FOR IC
TOTAL    MEETINGS & DUES                                         .00          1,250.00         -1,340.63

4360     TRAINING
9 /19 03/07/19 21 C582    -01 61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  575.00           -575.00 CONFERENCE REGISTRATION
9 /19 03/07/19 21 C583    -01 61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  575.00           -575.00 CONFERENCE REGISTRATION F
TOTAL    TRAINING                                                .00          1,150.00         -1,150.00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61265        5977 GREATAMERICA FIN              1,201.39               .00 COPIER/PRINTER
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00          1,201.39               .00

TOTAL    CITY MANAGER                                            .00          7,351.39         -6,240.63

         RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:01:30                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

109



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    3
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:01:29                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4214 - CITY CLERK'S OFFICE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4330     PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS
9 /19 03/07/19 21 9006    -01 61276        6080 LEE CENTRAL CALI              2,352.94         -2,352.94 HANFORD SENTINEL PRINTING
TOTAL    PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS                                 .00          2,352.94         -2,352.94

TOTAL    CITY CLERK'S OFFICE                                     .00          2,352.94         -2,352.94

         RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:01:30                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

110



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    4
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:01:29                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4215 - FINANCE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61265        5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 71.88               .00 COPIER/PRINTER
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             71.88               .00

TOTAL    FINANCE                                                 .00             71.88               .00

         RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:01:30                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

111



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    5
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:01:29                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4216 - PLANNING

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61265        5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                186.85               .00 COPIER/PRINTER
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            186.85               .00

TOTAL    PLANNING                                                .00            186.85               .00

         RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:01:30                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

112



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    6
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:01:29                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4220 - MAINTENANCE DIVISION

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4010     REGULAR SALARIES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61279        2145 NICK MACHADO                    149.62               .00 REIMBURSEMENT BOOTS
TOTAL    REGULAR SALARIES                                        .00            149.62               .00

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  219.68               .00 SKU: LT832127
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                   82.98               .00 HAN RIVETER RIVET GUN
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  313.01               .00 ORANGE 5 WIRE/PRO LOC
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  485.68               .00 SAFETY GEAR
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8817    -01 61319        1547 VERITIV OPERATIN                 92.43            -92.43 SUPPLIES
9 /19 03/07/19 21 C579    -01 61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  648.60           -648.60 UNIT OF OSB 7/16
9 /19 03/07/19 21 C579    -02 61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                   46.57            -46.57 SALES TAX
9 /19 03/07/19 21 C575    -01 61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  585.07           -599.29 DUAL SAFETY VALVE CMC KIT
9 /19 03/07/19 21 C576    -01 61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  267.70           -267.70 43.5X43.5 ROOF LINERS
9 /19 03/07/19 21 C576    -02 61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  468.47           -468.47 44X93.5 ROOF LINERS
9 /19 03/07/19 21 C576    -03 61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                1,462.89         -1,462.89 100X7 NO CLIMBING NETTING
9 /19 03/07/19 21 C576    -04 61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                   48.26            -48.26 SHIPPING
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          4,721.34         -3,634.21

4340     UTILITIES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61307        0423 SOCALGAS                        708.72               .00 01/22/19-02/21/19
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61307        0423 SOCALGAS                        289.82               .00 01/22/19-02/21/19
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61307        0423 SOCALGAS                         50.00               .00 01/22/19-02/21/19
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00          1,048.54               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61265        5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 15.44               .00 COPIER/PRINTER
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             15.44               .00

TOTAL    MAINTENANCE DIVISION                                    .00          5,934.94         -3,634.21

         RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:01:30                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

113



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    7
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:01:29                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4221 - POLICE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61244        3010 THE ANIMAL HOUSE                 68.59               .00 EUKANUBA 44#
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61274        6757 LA POLICE GEAR,                 245.61               .00 PEERLESS HAND/BIANCHI
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61266        5353 HAWKEPAKS.COM,IN                155.08               .00 SUPPLIES
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8978    -01 61262        2960 GALLS                           386.72           -386.72 PEERLESS MODEL 700 CHAIN
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8978    -02 61262        2960 GALLS                            97.76            -97.76 FIRST DEFENSE .2 PERCENT
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8978    -04 61262        2960 GALLS                         1,074.00         -1,074.00 SL-20L ALUMINUM RECHARGEA
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8978    -05 61262        2960 GALLS                           113.00           -113.00 SALES TAX @ 7.25%
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8978    -06 61262        2960 GALLS                             6.67             -6.67 SHIPPING
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          2,147.43         -1,678.15

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61316        5025 TULARE-KINGS VET                184.00               .00 EMERGENCY FEE
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61251        4056 COMCAST                         562.59               .00 ETHERNET FEB 19
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            746.59               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61317        5842 U.S. BANK EQUIPM                812.04               .00 PD COPIER 02/15-03/15
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61265        5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                   .61               .00 COPIER/PRINTER
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            812.65               .00

4840AR   AUTOS/TRKS ASSET REPLACE
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8619    -01 61272        2956 JONES COLLISION               1,997.43         -1,997.43 PAINT DODGE CHARGER
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8620    -01 61272        2956 JONES COLLISION               1,953.80         -1,953.80 PAINT DODGE CHARGER
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8620    -02 61272        2956 JONES COLLISION                  43.63            -43.63 TAX
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8648    -01 61252        6374 COOK'S COMMUNICA              7,993.79         -7,993.79 UPFIT PATROL BUILD FOR CH
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8648    -02 61252        6374 COOK'S COMMUNICA              2,300.00         -2,300.00 INSTALLATION OF UPFIT
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8648    -03 61252        6374 COOK'S COMMUNICA                637.50           -637.50 TAX
TOTAL    AUTOS/TRKS ASSET REPLACE                                .00         14,926.15        -14,926.15

TOTAL    POLICE                                                  .00         18,632.82        -16,604.30

         RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:01:30                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

114



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    8
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:01:29                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4222 - FIRE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8895    -01 61257        7047 FAILSAFE TESTING              1,400.00         -1,400.00 AERIAL LADDER TEST ANNUAL
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00          1,400.00         -1,400.00

4360     TRAINING
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8937    -01 61312        6926 TARGET SOLUTIONS              3,200.00         -3,200.00 TARGET SOLUTIONS RENEWAL
TOTAL    TRAINING                                                .00          3,200.00         -3,200.00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61265        5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                568.20               .00 COPIER/PRINTER
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            568.20               .00

TOTAL    FIRE                                                    .00          5,168.20         -4,600.00

         RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:01:30                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

115



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    9
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:01:29                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4224 - BUILDING INSPECTION

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /19 03/07/19 21 9005    -01 61270        6713 INTERWEST CONSUL                240.00           -240.00 TRACT 839 FIRE SPRINKLERS
9 /19 03/07/19 21 9005    -01 61270        6713 INTERWEST CONSUL                240.00           -240.00 TRACT 839 FIRE SPRINKLERS
9 /19 03/07/19 21 9005    -01 61270        6713 INTERWEST CONSUL                270.00           -270.00 TRACT 839 FIRE SPRINKLERS
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            750.00           -750.00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61265        5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 82.47               .00 COPIER/PRINTER
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             82.47               .00

TOTAL    BUILDING INSPECTION                                     .00            832.47           -750.00

         RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:01:30                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

116



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   10
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:01:29                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4230 - PUBLIC WORKS

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                   40.41               .00 OFFICE SUPPLIES
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00             40.41               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61265        5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                558.75               .00 COPIER/PRINTER
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            558.75               .00

TOTAL    PUBLIC WORKS                                            .00            599.16               .00

         RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:01:30                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

117



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   11
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:01:29                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4231 - STREETS

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4010     REGULAR SALARIES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61308        T2387 JOE SOTO                       200.00               .00 REIMBURSEMENT BOOTS
TOTAL    REGULAR SALARIES                                        .00            200.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61294        0363 PG&E                             80.11               .00 01/12/19-02/12/19
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61290        0363 PG&E                          1,087.36               .00 01/16/19-02/14/19
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61291        0363 PG&E                            312.67               .00 01/24/19-02/22/19
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61292        0363 PG&E                          7,747.76               .00 01/16/19-02/14/19
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61289        0363 PG&E                             59.20               .00 01/17/19-02/15/19
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61296        0363 PG&E                             59.96               .00 01/24/19-02/22/19
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00          9,347.06               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61265        5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                   .04               .00 COPIER/PRINTER
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00               .04               .00

TOTAL    STREETS                                                 .00          9,547.10               .00

         RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:01:30                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

118



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   12
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:01:29                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4241 - PARKS

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  219.67               .00 SKU: LT832127
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            219.67               .00

TOTAL    PARKS                                                   .00            219.67               .00

         RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:01:30                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

119



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   13
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:01:29                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4242 - RECREATION

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  156.00               .00 BACK DROP
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  161.84               .00 FATHER/DAUGHTER DANCE
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61288        5396 OFFICE DEPOT                     80.59               .00 INK,PHOTO,HP 564XL,BL
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                   77.09               .00 CLUB LIVE
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                   79.90               .00 MR. BALLOONS
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  100.00               .00 USA BOXING REGISTRATI
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  385.48               .00 FATHER/DAUGHTER DANCE
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  265.42               .00 VENDING MACHINES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  269.36               .00 VENDING MACHINES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  498.34               .00 VOLUNTEER DINNER
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  416.75               .00 VENDING MACHINE
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61313        T1328 DENISE TAYLOR                  420.00               .00 LADIES NIGHT FEB 19
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  442.10               .00 EQUIPMENT FOR SPRING
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  450.00               .00 NATIONAL SENIOR HEALT
9 /19 03/07/19 21 C577    -01 61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                1,043.50         -1,043.50 SPRING WINE TRIP TRANSPOR
9 /19 03/07/19 21 C580    -01 61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  100.00           -100.00 TICKETS
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                   38.45               .00 BATONS
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                   38.45               .00 BATONS
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                    7.15               .00 FRIDAY NIGHT MUSIC
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                    8.52               .00 BEST BUY MARKET
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          5,038.94         -1,143.50

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61263        5962 JASON GLASPIE                   -86.00               .00 CHILD SUPPORT FEB 19
9 /19 03/07/19 21 9001    -01 61277        6696 LIVE SCAN FRESNO                540.00           -540.00 LIVE SCAN FINGERPRINT ROL
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61303        T2217 SHANEE RANESES               1,444.33               .00 REC DANCE (1 OF 3)
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61250        6731 FLORENCE COLBY                  375.00               .00 ZUMBA FEB 19
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61318        6371 MANUEL VELARDE                  579.25               .00 KARATE FEB 19
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61263        5962 JASON GLASPIE                   662.55               .00 BOXING FEB 19
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61315        T1508 MAUREEN TOMPKINS               707.00               .00 DOG OBEDIENCE FEB 19
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61255        T1335 CHARLIE ENNES                  277.90               .00 GUITAR FEB 19
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61313        T1328 DENISE TAYLOR                  280.00               .00 HORSEBK LESSNS FEB19
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61278        6410 JERONIMO LUCAS                  294.00               .00 SOCCER INSTR WK 7-9
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61271        7049 LORENZO C.L. JIM                392.00               .00 DRAMA FEB 19
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61267        7011 KERRI MICHELLE H                140.00               .00 PEEWEE FITNESS FEB 19
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61267        7011 KERRI MICHELLE H                 84.00               .00 PEEWEE MUSIC FEB 19
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61280        6973 MELODY MAR                       84.00               .00 BATON CLASS FEB 19
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61309        5235 STATE DISBURSEME                 86.00               .00 GLASPIE-FEB CHILD SUP
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          5,860.03           -540.00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61265        5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                347.23               .00 COPIER/PRINTER
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            347.23               .00

TOTAL    RECREATION                                              .00         11,246.20         -1,683.50

         RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:01:30                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

120



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   14
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:01:29                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4296 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC

         RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:01:30                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

121



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   15
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:01:29                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4296 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61251        4056 COMCAST                       1,687.77               .00 ETHERNET FEB 19
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          1,687.77               .00

TOTAL    INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY                                  .00          1,687.77               .00

         RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:01:30                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

122



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   16
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:01:29                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4297 - HUMAN RESOURCES

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4320     MEETINGS & DUES
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8746    -01 61246        2836 THE BODY SHOP HE                200.00           -200.00 MONTHLY CHARGE FOR CITY E
TOTAL    MEETINGS & DUES                                         .00            200.00           -200.00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61265        5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 24.74               .00 COPIER/PRINTER
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             24.74               .00

TOTAL    HUMAN RESOURCES                                         .00            224.74           -200.00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00         64,293.19        -36,065.58

         RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:01:30                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

123



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   17
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:01:29                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 040 - FLEET MAINTENANCE
BUDGET UNIT - 4265 - FLEET MAINTENANCE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61265        5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                -69.04               .00 COPIER/PRINTER
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            -69.04               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61245        1908 BATTERY SYSTEMS,                111.66               .00 96R,620CCA,95RC
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                   73.69               .00 BALL NEARING INSERT
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00            185.35               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61252        6374 COOK'S COMMUNICA                259.97               .00 BLUE SEAS SOLENOID
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  491.37               .00 ELEMENT SET/LAB-MECH
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8771    -01 61281        6012 MCCANN & SON'S T                981.80           -981.80 BLANKET PO FOR REFUSE TRU
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61301        2486 R AND J MACHINE                  55.00               .00 08 CHEV SILVER SMOG
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00          1,788.14           -981.80

TOTAL    FLEET MAINTENANCE                                       .00          1,904.45           -981.80

TOTAL    FLEET MAINTENANCE                                       .00          1,904.45           -981.80

         RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:01:30                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

124



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   18
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:01:29                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 045 - GOLF COURSE - CITY
BUDGET UNIT - 4245 - GOLF COURSE-CITY

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4000P    COST OF REVENUE-PRO SHOP
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61242        6911 ADIDAS AMERICA,                  85.57               .00 TM1416F8 WHITE
TOTAL    COST OF REVENUE-PRO SHOP                                .00             85.57               .00

TOTAL    GOLF COURSE-CITY                                        .00             85.57               .00

TOTAL    GOLF COURSE - CITY                                      .00             85.57               .00

         RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:01:30                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

125



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   19
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:01:29                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 050 - WATER
BUDGET UNIT - 4250 - WATER

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61243        0016 ALERT-O-LITE                     81.95               .00 DIAMOND BLADE 14" OX
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  143.27               .00 1.5IN X 5.5IN LUMBER
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61249        1599 CHEMSEARCH                      356.15               .00 ECOFLOW BIO-AMP PROGR
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8979    -01 61261        6751 FURTADO WELDING                 280.26           -280.26 TOOL SET 1/5"-3/8"
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8979    -02 61261        6751 FURTADO WELDING                 109.63           -109.63 SCREWDRIVER SET
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8979    -03 61261        6751 FURTADO WELDING                  83.91            -83.91 PRY BAR SET 3 PC
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8979    -04 61261        6751 FURTADO WELDING                 207.77           -207.77 WRENCH SET MET 23 PC
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8979    -05 61261        6751 FURTADO WELDING                  57.01            -57.01 PIPE WRENCH 4PC SET
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8979    -06 61261        6751 FURTADO WELDING                  25.03            -25.03 PIPE WRENCH ALUM QUICK CH
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8979    -07 61261        6751 FURTADO WELDING                 109.06           -109.06 HAMMER SET 5 PC
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8979    -08 61261        6751 FURTADO WELDING                  98.86            -98.86 PLIERS LOCKING 7PC SET
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8979    -09 61261        6751 FURTADO WELDING                  26.35            -26.35 VISE DRIP PLIERS 2PC SET
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8979    -10 61261        6751 FURTADO WELDING                  37.42            -37.42 PIPE CUTTER
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8979    -11 61261        6751 FURTADO WELDING                  75.06            -75.06 SALES TAX @ 7.25%
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                   46.70               .00 OFFICE SUPPLIES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                   64.72               .00 WHITE SOLAR POWERED M
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          1,803.15         -1,110.36

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8598    -01 61259        0188 FERGUSON ENTERPR              2,427.58         -2,427.58 18-19 BLANKET PO, WATER D
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8598    -02 61259        0188 FERGUSON ENTERPR                755.42           -755.42 FIRE HYDRANT REPLACE AND
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00          3,183.00         -3,183.00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61299        0020 PRAXAIR DISTRIBU                 35.72               .00 SPEC HIGH PRESSURE
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00             35.72               .00

4340     UTILITIES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61295        0363 PG&E                         25,904.51               .00 01/08/19-02/06/19
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61298        6627 PG&E NON ENERGY               1,041.68               .00 NUCLEAR/PUBLIC JAN 18
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00         26,946.19               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8866    -02 61314        2799 TELSTAR INSTRUME              6,762.00         -6,762.00 2018 WELL FLOW METER CALI
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8866    -02 61314        2799 TELSTAR INSTRUME                603.25           -603.25 2018 WELL FLOW METER CALI
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00          7,365.25         -7,365.25

4360     TRAINING
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61287        T737 PHILIP OCHOA                    232.00               .00 ADVANCE PER DIEM
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61302        6931 STEVEN RAMIREZ                  232.00               .00 ADVANCE PER DIEM
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61311        6932 SERGIO TAFOLLA                  232.00               .00 ADVANCE PER DIEM
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61305        7059 MICHAEL ROSAS                   232.00               .00 ADVANCE PER DIEM
TOTAL    TRAINING                                                .00            928.00               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61265        5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                  4.65               .00 COPIER/PRINTER

         RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:01:30                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

126



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   20
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:01:29                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 050 - WATER
BUDGET UNIT - 4250 - WATER

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4380     RENTALS & LEASES          (cont'd)
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00              4.65               .00

TOTAL    WATER                                                   .00         40,265.96        -11,658.61

         RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:01:30                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

127



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   21
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:01:29                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 050 - WATER
BUDGET UNIT - 4251 - UTILITY OFFICE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /19 03/07/19 21 9000    -01 61300        6729 PRIDESTAFF, INC.                720.00           -720.00 ACCOUNT CLERK
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            720.00           -720.00

4330     PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61268        5546 INFOSEND                      1,404.96               .00 STMTS JAN 19/ADDR CHG
TOTAL    PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS                                 .00          1,404.96               .00

4335     POSTAGE & MAILING
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61268        5546 INFOSEND                      2,601.05               .00 STMTS JAN 19/ADDR CHG
TOTAL    POSTAGE & MAILING                                       .00          2,601.05               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61265        5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 88.45               .00 COPIER/PRINTER
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             88.45               .00

TOTAL    UTILITY OFFICE                                          .00          4,814.46           -720.00

         RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:01:30                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

128



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   22
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:01:29                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 050 - WATER
BUDGET UNIT - 5227 - WELL MECHANICAL

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /19 03/07/19 21 9008    -01 61310        0428 STONEY'S SAND &                 901.32           -901.32 2-1/2" BALLAST ROCK BASE
9 /19 03/07/19 21 9008    -02 61310        0428 STONEY'S SAND &                  65.35            -65.35 SALES TAX @ 7.25%
9 /19 03/07/19 21 9003    -01 61248        7023 BRECK'S ELECTRIC                686.28           -686.28 NACHI THRUST BEARING
9 /19 03/07/19 21 9003    -02 61248        7023 BRECK'S ELECTRIC                170.64           -170.64 RADIAL BEARING
9 /19 03/07/19 21 9003    -03 61248        7023 BRECK'S ELECTRIC                 91.36            -91.36 US 2.0" SIGHT GLASS WITH
9 /19 03/07/19 21 9003    -04 61248        7023 BRECK'S ELECTRIC                123.96           -123.96 SHELL TURBO T 32
9 /19 03/07/19 21 9003    -05 61248        7023 BRECK'S ELECTRIC              1,120.00         -1,120.00 SHOP LABOR TO CLEAN, BRAK
9 /19 03/07/19 21 9003    -06 61248        7023 BRECK'S ELECTRIC                 83.10            -83.10 SALES TAX @ 7.75% ON $1,0
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          3,242.01         -3,242.01

TOTAL    WELL MECHANICAL                                         .00          3,242.01         -3,242.01

TOTAL    WATER                                                   .00         48,322.43        -15,620.62

         RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:01:30                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

129



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   23
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:01:29                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 056 - REFUSE
BUDGET UNIT - 4256 - REFUSE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  236.98               .00 14 FT RATCHET 4 CT OR
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  154.39               .00 OFFICE SUPPLIES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61286        1889 NORTHERN SAFETY                 159.71               .00 NS AXEL 3000 EYEWR SM
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            551.08               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /19 03/07/19 21 9002    -01 61269        6691 INTERSTATE GAS S              5,934.01         -5,934.01 REFUSE RATE STUDY
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8579    -01 61273        0234 KINGS WASTE AND              81,714.84        -81,714.84 BLANKET PO FOR KWRA 2018/
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8703    -01 61254        6869 MILLENNIUM FUNDI                140.16           -140.16 BLANKET FOR TEMP LABOR 18
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         87,789.01        -87,789.01

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61265        5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                   .55               .00 COPIER/PRINTER
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00               .55               .00

TOTAL    REFUSE                                                  .00         88,340.64        -87,789.01

TOTAL    REFUSE                                                  .00         88,340.64        -87,789.01

         RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:01:30                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

130



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   24
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:01:29                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 060 - SEWER& STORM WTR DRAINAGE
BUDGET UNIT - 4260 - SEWER

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61249        1599 CHEMSEARCH                      356.15               .00 ECOFLOW BIO-AMP PROGR
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            356.15               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61264        0521 GRAINGER                        165.25               .00 RUN CAPACITOR, 60 MFD
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61258        5866 FASTENAL COMPANY                 83.19               .00 SDS+ 1"X18" OAL
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8921    -01 61247        5140 BOGIE'S PUMP SYS                886.96           -886.96 PUMP-STANCOR SEW-100 1HP-
9 /19 03/07/19 21 8921    -02 61247        5140 BOGIE'S PUMP SYS                108.30           -108.30 FREIGHT
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61264        0521 GRAINGER                         28.77               .00 FUSE,RKS,SER
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00          1,272.47           -995.26

4300     RENTAL/CITY OWNED VEHICLE
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61306        6251 SEQUOIA EQUIPMEN                312.05               .00 WHEEL
TOTAL    RENTAL/CITY OWNED VEHICLE                               .00            312.05               .00

4340     UTILITIES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61293        0363 PG&E                         12,708.40               .00 01/18/19-02/19/19
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61297        0363 PG&E                             21.68               .00 01/17/19-02/18/19
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00         12,730.08               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES
9 /19 03/07/19 21 9009    -01 61314        2799 TELSTAR INSTRUME                496.00           -496.00 HOURS
9 /19 03/07/19 21 9009    -02 61314        2799 TELSTAR INSTRUME                135.00           -135.00 VEHICLE/TOOLS/TEST EQUIPM
9 /19 03/07/19 21 9009    -03 61314        2799 TELSTAR INSTRUME                 20.25            -20.25 FUEL SURCHARGE
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00            651.25           -651.25

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
9 /19 03/07/19 21             61265        5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 35.08               .00 COPIER/PRINTER
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             35.08               .00

TOTAL    SEWER                                                   .00         15,357.08         -1,646.51

TOTAL    SEWER& STORM WTR DRAINAGE                               .00         15,357.08         -1,646.51

         RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:01:30                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

131



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   25
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:01:29                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 068 - GENERAL FACILITIES CAP
BUDGET UNIT - 5700 - ADMIN OFFICE RELOCATION

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /19 03/07/19 21 9011    -01 61256        5902 ERROL VETTER                    540.40           -540.40 RETAINER FROM INVOICE 290
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            540.40           -540.40

TOTAL    ADMIN OFFICE RELOCATION                                 .00            540.40           -540.40

TOTAL    GENERAL FACILITIES CAP                                  .00            540.40           -540.40

TOTAL REPORT                                                     .00        218,843.76       -142,643.92

         RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:01:30                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

132



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 09:26:03                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: account.acct between '1011' and '2021'AND transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

1550     PREPAID EXPENSE
   9 /19 03/07/19  21 61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                   14,486.97                    480407992MAR19
TOTAL    PREPAID EXPENSE                                                 14,486.97               .00

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   9 /19 03/07/19  21 61260        3022 FIRST BANKCARD                                     14,486.97  480407992MAR19
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00         14,486.97

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                                    14,486.97         14,486.97

TOTAL REPORT                                                             14,486.97         14,486.97

133



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 09:21:22                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: account.acct between '2000' and '2999'AND transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 090 - TRUST & AGENCY

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   9 /19 03/07/19  21 61284        T2645 ANGEL MORA                                           120.00  VET HALL REFUND
   9 /19 03/07/19  21 61283        T2222 MAGALY MILLAN                                        150.00  VET HALL REFUND
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00            270.00

2300     CUSTOMER DEPOSITS
   9 /19 03/07/19  21 61284        T2645 ANGEL MORA                         120.00                    VET HALL REFUND
   9 /19 03/07/19  21 61283        T2222 MAGALY MILLAN                      150.00                    VET HALL REFUND
TOTAL    CUSTOMER DEPOSITS                                                  270.00               .00

TOTAL    TRUST & AGENCY                                                     270.00            270.00

TOTAL REPORT                                                                270.00            270.00

134



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 03/11/2019                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT31
TIME: 09:19:28                                      REVENUE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.account between '3000' and '3999' and transact.batch='HB030819'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/19

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 001 - GENERAL FUND

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C RECEIVE REFERENCE   PAYER/VENDOR        BUDGET          RECEIPTS       RECEIVABLES DESCRIPTION

3681     RECREATION FEES
   9 /19 03/07/19  210        61285       T2649 SONDRA MUELA                    -70.00                   YOUTH SOCCER REFUND
   9 /19 03/07/19  210        61282       T2647 PHILLIP MELLO                  -140.00                   YOUTH SOCCER REFUND
   9 /19 03/07/19  210        61304       T2648 SHEILA RODRIGUES                -60.00                   YOUTH SOCCER REFUND
TOTAL    RECREATION FEES                                         .00           -270.00               .00

3880     MISCELLANEOUS
   9 /19 03/07/19  210        61260       3022 FIRST BANKCARD                  -140.92                   INTEREST CHARGE
TOTAL    MISCELLANEOUS                                           .00           -140.92               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00           -410.92               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00           -410.92               .00

TOTAL REPORT                                                     .00           -410.92               .00

                   RUN DATE 03/11/2019 TIME 09:19:28  PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

135


	Agenda 03-19-19
	SS-1 - Staff Report SFKGSA
	Item 3-1 - Minutes 03-05-19
	Item 3-2-1 - Staff Report- AB 17 Letter of Support
	Item 3-2-2 - AB 17 Letter of Support
	711 W. Cinnamon Drive ● Lemoore, California 93245 ● (559) 924-6700 ● Fax (559) 924-6708

	Item 3-3-1 - TDA Fund Claim 2019-2020_Staff Report
	Item 3-3-2 - TDA Fund Claim 2019-2020_A-TDA Shares
	Item 3-3-3 - Reso 2019-10
	Item 3-3-4 - TDA Fund Claim 2019-2020_C-Projects
	Item 3-3-5 - TDA Fund Claim 2019-2020_D-NOE
	Item 3-3-6 - TDA Fund Claim 2019-2020_Claim
	Item 3-4-1 - Abatement_staff report (empty lot and 234 G Street)
	Item 3-4-2 - Reso 2019-11
	ASSESSOR PARCEL NO.  ADDRESS
	ASSESSOR PARCEL NO.   ADDRESS
	ASSESSOR PARCEL NO.  ADDRESS

	Item 3-5-1 - Water Hook Truck_Staff Report
	Item 3-5-2 - Water Hook Truck_Quote
	Item 3-6-1 - Staff Report - Finance Job Descriptions
	Item 3-6-2 - Resoultion 2019-12
	RESOLUTION NO. 2019-12

	Item 3-6-3 - City Clerk_Exec. Assistant
	1. Coordinate assigned services and activities of the City Clerk’s Office.
	2. Participate in and direct the preparation of City Council agendas and packets; create initial agenda for City Manager's review; distribute packets to Council members; attend meetings and take and transcribe minutes.
	3. Actively manage and actively participate in the development and implementation of organizational and departmental goals, objectives, policies and priorities for assigned programs; recommend and administer policies and procedures.
	4. Type and proofread a wide variety of reports, letters, memoranda and correspondence from rough draft or verbal instruction; independently compose correspondence related to assigned responsibilities.
	5. Coordinate and conduct City elections; prepare appropriate resolutions and ordinances for Council adoption; process election booklet and all forms necessary for candidates to run for office; research and ensure compliance with applicable election l...
	6. Maintain custody of official records and archives of the City including ordinances, resolutions, contracts, agreements, deeds, insurance documents and minutes.
	7. Coordinate operational administrative activities and resources for assigned service area or top management position; receive, research, gather information, process, and respond to inquiries and requests; assist in conveying and implementing policie...
	8. Exhibit a service orientation toward internal and external customers and maintain productive working relationships.
	9. Manage calendars; arrange meeting location and equipment logistics; prepare and distribute agendas, correspondence, informational materials and meeting minutes, ensuring documents adhere to applicable standards.
	10. Coordinate, make, process, and confirm staff travel arrangements; prepare related expense reports.
	11. Greet internal and external customers via telephone and in‐person; provide information and respond to requests, researching and resolving inquiries and issues, and convey information regarding policies and procedures; seek appropriate contact or r...
	12. Enter and maintain data in department databases; research and locate information, provide status/disposition updates, prepare documents and generate reports that are of a time‐sensitive nature and adhere to applicable standards.
	13. Type, word process, and proofread a variety of reports, letters, memoranda, correspondence, resolutions, ordinances, statistical charts, and other documents; types from rough draft, verbal instruction, or transcribing machine; independently compos...
	14. Initiate, organize, maintain, and control access to complex filing systems and records including highly sensitive files; conduct periodic retention and purging of files in compliance with applicable guidelines.
	15. Based on assignment, may perform the following specialized activities: prepare and process financial administrative documents related to accounts payable, accounts receivable, purchasing, and travel expenses; provide budget tracking and expense re...
	16. Respond to and resolve difficult and sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints.
	17. Perform related duties and responsibilities as required.

	Item 3-6-4 - Finance Manager
	 Assists with full management responsibility for assigned services and activities of the Finance Department, including utility billing, accounts payable, payroll, business licenses, purchasing, and assists in the preparation of the City operating and...
	 Exhibits a service orientation toward internal and external customers and maintains productive working relationships.
	 Actively manage and actively participate in the development and implementation of organizational and departmental goals, objectives, policies and priorities for assigned programs; recommend and administer policies and procedures.
	 Monitor and evaluate the efficiency and effectiveness of service delivery methods and procedures; recommend, within departmental policy, appropriate service and staffing levels.
	 Oversee utility billing cycles including collections and the creation of new accounts; prepare reports on potential changes to utility billing.
	 Supervise accounts payable functions including processing of invoices; review warrant registers prior to payment to vendors.
	 Receive and approve payroll information including payroll warrants and warrants for taxes and deductions.
	 Assist in the monitoring and accounting for all City debts.
	 Participate in annual City audits; meet and confer with auditor; compile all necessary information; research and explain areas of concern.
	 Serve as the liaison or designee for the Finance Department with other divisions, departments and outside agencies; negotiate and resolve sensitive and controversial issues.
	 Provide responsible staff assistance to the Finance Director.
	 Attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new trends and innovations in the field of accounting and financial services.
	 Perform related duties and responsibilities as required.
	WORKING CONDITIONS


	Item 3-6-5 - HR_Risk Management Manager
	Item 3-6-6 - Assistant City Manager_Admin Svcs
	Item 5-1-1 - Staff Report - Contract Award TTHM Construction Management
	Item 5-1-2 - CM Agreement - Vanir (00632263x7AD00)
	Item 5-1-3 - Vanir City of Lemoore - WTP Project PM Scope Fee 2019 03 07 Final
	Item 5-1-4 - Compliance Order
	Item 5-1-5- Reso 2016-26
	AU0 - Activity Update 3-19-19
	Lemoore City Council
	To:
	Janie Venegas, City Clerk / Human Resources Manager
	From:
	March 13, 2019
	Date:
	Subject:
	Strategic Initiative:

	AU1 - Attendance Matrix 2019 - Jan to Feb
	Neal
	Billingsley
	Brown
	Lyons

	AU2 - WR 3-1-19
	AU3 - WR 3-8-19
	HB030819 ETA
	HB030819 GLTA
	HB030819 GTA
	HB030819 RTA




